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to deliver superior value to shareholders

to constantly obtain exceptional results in the management of financial assets

to achieve higher return of investments and sustainable long term growth 
of our portfolio

to be  a dynamic presence in the Romanian investment environment along with 
international prestigious partners

to preserve a positive image by promoting the principles of corporate governance

professionalism promoted to enhance excellence, innovation and professional 

development of our employees

responsibily to attain the overall corporate goals

integrity in every aspect of our business

respect for colleagues, partners and co-workers
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Assets under management

Income vs. expenses [RON mn]

Return on equity Return on assets

Net profit vs. dividends RON mn]

NAV vs. MkCap [RON mn]

RON 1,424.7 mn, SIF Banat-Crișana’s total assets under management*

as of December 31, 2010
*computed according to CNVM Reg. no. 15/2004 and CNVM Dispositions  no. 9/2010 and 21/2010

and certified by ING Bank N.V. Amsterdam, Bucharest branch (SIF Banat-Crișana’s depository)

*computed according to CNVM Reg. no. 15/2004 and CNVM Dispositions  no. 9/2010 and 21/2010
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Chairman’s statement

The global markets, as well the Romanian capital market, remained depressed in 2010 signaling 
weak recovery so far. Given the general economic conditions, SIF Banat-Crișana continued the 
prudent portfolio management focusing on the mitigation of the associated risk.

The reduced liquidity on the Bucharest Stock Exchange and the low quotes of the listed shares had 
an adverse impact over the volume of transactions in 2010. Although the income from 
transactions shrank as against 2009, the profit from sales in 2010 offered a higher return of 50.5% 
vs 31.4% in 2009.

SIF Banat-Crișana's financial results were in line with our projections, even though they were not 
quite as spectacular as in the previous years. The net profit in 2010 was of RON 62.99 mn. The 
annual general meeting of the shareholders of April 28, 2011 approved the distribution of 
dividends in amount of RON 56.53 mn, namely 0.103 RON/share, with a dividend yield of 10.15% 
thus generating a very attractive rate of return to SIF1 shares.

In 2010, we maintained the prudent investment policy as in the past two years, focusing on issuers 
providing potential for enhanced growth and income. The investments made in 2010 exceeded by 
38% the volume in 2009, while the investments for 2011 are projected to rise by 60% as compared 
to 2010.

We remain focused on providing a liquid and diversified portfolio, to ensure flexibility to resource 
allocation decisions and optimize yields. In this respect, a key goal for 2011 is to complete and 
implement an investment strategy on the international capital markets.

Through the geographic spread of issuers, the exposure on different currencies and selection of 
issuers from business areas with economic growth and positive trend on the capital market, we 
pursue to build a properly diversified portfolio. By adopting an active portfolio policy, we strive to 
ensure portfolio flexibility with positive implications over the economic performance and reliability 
of the Company.

Our business development strategy relies on embracing opportunities to gain a competitive 
advantage within the business environment where the Company operates while also sharpening 
our focus on the development of Company's human resource. 

On the behalf of our Board of Directors and senior management, I would like to thank our staff for 
their effort over the past year and our shareholders for their continued confidence in our 
Company.

Ioan Cuzman
Chairman & CEO
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Company profile

6 Company profile / Financial calendar 2011

SIF Banat-Crișana is a closed-end investment SIF Banat-Crișana's subscribed and paid up 
company, self managed, set up as a joint stock share capital as of December 31, 2010 was of 
company with entire private capital. RON 54,884,926.80  divided into  548,849,268 

shares at a nominal value of 0.10 RON per 
SIF Banat-Crișana is authorized by CNVM share. SIF Banat-Crișana's shares are traded on 
(Certificate no. 258/14.12.2005) and registered the First Tier of Bucharest Stock Exchange 
with CNVM in the category Other (BSE), ticker SIF1.
Undertakings for Collective Investments 
(AOPC). SIF Banat-Crișana's headquarters is in Arad, 

Romania. The Company has four branch 
The Company operates in accordance with the offices located in Bistrița, Bucharest, Cluj-
provisions of laws and special regulations Napoca and Satu-Mare.
enforceable to joint stock companies and to 
the capital market as well as the provisions of Independent auditor: KPMG Audit SRL 
Company's articles of incorporation.

Depository: ING Bank NV Amsterdam, 
SIF Banat-Crișana's investment policy complies Bucharest branch, endorsed by CNVM
with the prudential requirements for portfolio 
diversification set forth by CNVM. The asset Registrar: S.C.Depozitarul Central S.A. 
evaluation is performed in accordance with the București
provisions in CNVM Regulation no. 15/2004 
and CNVM Disposition of measures no.9/2010 
and 21/2010.

Financial calendar 2011

February 15

Preliminary results as of December 31, 2010

April 27/28

Annual General Meeting

April 28

Release of annual financial statements for 2010

May 6

First quarter results 2011

August 12

Half year results 2011 

November 4

Third quarter results 2011 

Corporate governance 7 

Corporate governance

forth in SIF Banat-Crișana's By-Laws and in Compliance with the provisions of 
CNVM Regulation no. 15/2004.the Code of Corporate 

Governance of Bucharest Stock The AGM of April 25, 2009 elected, for a four-
Exchange term of office, the following members of the 

Board of Directors: Ioan Cuzman, Emil Cazan, 
The Board of Directors has adopted the Ion Stancu, Horia Ciorcilă, Zoltan Hosszu, Pavel 
Corporate Governance Regulation of SIF Belean, Lucia Carmen Dumitrescu.  Two 
Banat-Cri;ana, complying with individuals refused the nomination of board 
Recommendation no.3 of the Code of member in accordance with Law 31/1990 
Corporate Governance of Bucharest Stock (Horia Ciorcilă and Lucia Carmen Dumitrescu), 
Exchange (CCG). The Corporate Governance so the Board of Directors did not operate in its 
Regulation (CGR) gathers the structures, full composition throughout 2009 and 2010.
responsibilities and practices that fall under the 
CCG provisions and which derive from SIF The composition of SIF Banat-Crișana's Board 
Banat-Crişana's  articles of incorporation, of Directors as of December 31, 2009 was: Ioan 
regulations and its internal procedures, Cuzman (Chairman), Emil Cazan (Vice-
supplemented, where applicable, with the Chairman), Pavel Belean, Zoltan Hosszu, Ion 
recommendations stipulated in CCG. Stancu.

Through the CGR, the Board of Directors Based on the powers of Law no.31/1990 R and 
declares its commitment to comply, where Company's By-Laws, SIF Banat-Crișana's Board 
appropriate, with the principles stipulated in of Directors appointed on January 22, 2010 
CCG. The Corporate Governance Regulation is Messrs Claudiu-Eugen Silaghi and Dragoș-
available on SIF Banat-Crișana website, George Bîlteanu as interim board members on 
www.sif1.ro. The level of implementation of the the vacant seats.
principles and recommendations stated in the 
CCG are reported by SIF Banat-Crișana in the On February 26, 2010, the Board of Directors 
“Comply or Explain” Statement, according to of SIF Banat-Crișana took note of the 
Recommendation no.3 in CCG, submitted to resignation of Mr Pavel Belean as board 
BSE together with 2010 Annual report and member and decided the appointment of 
posted on Company's website, www.sif1.ro. Mr. Horia Ciorcilă as interim board member.
SIF Banat-Crișana fully complies with 16 out of The AGM of April 30, 2010 validated Messrs 
19 CCG principles. According to BSE Code Claudiu-Eugen Silaghi, Dragoş-George 
(Book I, Title II, Chapter IV, Section 1, art.51), Bîlteanu and Horia Ciorcilă as board members 
the issuers listed on the First Tier of the stock of SIF Banat-Crişana.
exchange must comply with at least 14 out of 
the 19 CCG principles. The non-compliance On July 30, 2010, Messrs Claudiu-Eugen Silaghi 
cases are explained in the “Comply or Explain” and Horia Ciorcilă resigned from the Board of 
Statement. Directors of SIF Banat-Crișana.

From July 30, 2010 to December 31, 2010, the Corporate Governance Structures 
Company was managed by a Board of 
Directors composed of five members.Board of Directors
The Board members are authorized by CNVM 
upon the Certificates no. 112, 113, 114 and According to the provisions of SIF Banat-
115 of June 17, 2009 and Certificate no.45 of Crișana's By-Laws, the Company  is governed 
March 18, 2010.by a Board of Directors (BoD) comprising 7 

members, elected by the shareholders' general 
There are no and have been no agreements, meeting for a four-year term of office, with the 
understandings or family relationships between possibility of re-election. The nomination of 
the board members and any other persons candidates for director positions is made by  
that might have led to the appointment of the the board members or by shareholders. The 
board members. The qualification and eligibility criteria for board members are set 
professional experience of the board members 

Adopting sound corporate governance practices and policies is envisaged 
to ensure a solid support for the sustainable development of SIF Banat-
Crișana, increasing the confidence of the shareholders, business partners, 
employees and financial markets.
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Board of Directors

Ioan Cuzman

Dragoș Bîlteanu Carmen Dumitrescu Gabriela Grigore

Emil Cazan Zoltan Hosszu Ion Stancu

Executive Management Board

Ioan Cuzman Zoltan Hosszu 
Chairman of the Board of Directors and Member of the Board of Directors
Chief Executive Officer • lawyer
• BA and PhD in Economics • member of the Audit Committee
• majors in Management and Economics • BoD member since 1997, current term of 
• professor at the “Vasile Goldiș” West office runs until 2013 
University of Arad
• Chairman of the BoD of SIF Banat-Crișana Ion Stancu 
since 1997, current term of office runs until Member of the Board of Directors 
2013 • BA and PhD in Economics

• professor and vice-rector at the Bucharest 
Emil Cazan Academy of Economic Studies  
Vice-chairman of the Board of Directors • member of the Audit Committee
• BA and PhD in Economics • BoD member since 2003, current term of 
• majors in management, international office runs until 2013
marketing, company valuation and winding-up 
procedures Dragoș Bîlteanu
• senior professor at the Faculty of Economics Member of the Board of Directors
within the West University of Timișoara • BA in Economics, MBA
• BoD member since 2001, current term of • financial auditor, fiscal advisor, insolvency 
office runs until 2013 practitioner

• BoD member since 2010, current term of 
office runs until 2013

Ioan Cuzman, Chairman of the Board of Carmen Dumitrescu, Deputy General 
Directors and Chief Executive Officer Director – Development

• MSc in Engineering, MBA at Case Western 
Gabriela Grigore, Deputy General Director – Reserve University Cleveland Ohio, USA
Operations • oversees the corporate financial planning, 
• BA in Economics, majors in financial development programs, investor relations, the 
management and portfolio management IT and legal activities and the Strategy Division
• oversees SIF Banat-Crișana's investment • joined the company in 1993 and was 
activity on the financial markets, the portfolio appointed Deputy General Director – 
management and research activity development in 1999
• has been working with the company since its 
establishment in 1992, being appointed 
Deputy General Director – Operations in 2004

Management
is presented in the detailed résumés posted on following responsibilities: monitoring the 
Company's website, www.sif1.ro. financial reporting process; monitoring the 

effectiveness of the internal control systems, 
The activity of the Board of Directors in 2010 internal audit, as appropriate, and the risk 

management system within the company; 
The Board of Directors met 16 times in 2010. monitoring the statutory audit of the annual 
The board meetings were called at least five financial statements and of the consolidated 
days prior to the date set for the ordinary annual financial statements; reviewing and 
meeting. The presence of the board members monitoring the independence of the statutory 
in 2010 was in compliance with the legal auditor or the audit company and, especially, 
provisions. All the meetings were presided over rendering additional services to the Company; 
by the Chairman. Topics and projects relevant recommendations to the Board of Directors on 
to Company's business were submitted for the selection, appointment, re-appointment 
debate. A number of 62 resolutions were and replacement of the financial auditor, as 
adopted, complying with the applicable legal well as the terms and conditions of its 
provisions, regulations, articles of incorporation remuneration.
and internal procedures. The decisions were 
taken by the affirmative vote of a majority of The Audit Committee supports the Board of 
those present, according to the provisions of Directors in monitoring the reliability and 
the By-Laws. From the implementation integrity of the financial information provided 
perspective, all decisions were fully by the Company, especially by reviewing the 
implemented. Details regarding the Board of relevance and consistency of the accounting 
Directors' activity are presented in the report of standards implemented by the Company.
the Chairman of the Board of Directors that 
accompanies the annual report posted on Executive Management Board
Company's website.

SIF Banat-Crișana's executive management is 
For 2010 fiscal year, according to the legal ensured by three senior managers – the 
provisions, the remuneration of the board Executive Management Board (EMB) - 
members, the general limits of all additional appointed by the Board of Directors in 
remunerations of board members and the accordance with CNVM Regulation 
general limits of directors' remunerations were no.15/2004. The appointed senior managers 
approved by the AGM of April 30, 2010. are: Mr Ioan Cuzman, Mrs Gabriela Grigore 
According to the provisions of SIF Banat- and Mrs Carmen Dumitrescu.
Crișana's By-Laws, the Chairman of the Board 
of Directors is also Company's Chief Executive The senior managers are empowered to 
Officer. Part of the powers of the Board of manage and co-ordinate Company's day-to-
Directors is delegated to the Chief Executive day activity and are vested with the authority 
Officer, according to the provisions of Law no. to commit the responsibility of the Company. 
31/1990 and the By-Laws. Except for the 
Chairman, no other Board member has The senior managers meet the provisions of 
executive authority. Law no.  31/1990 R for exercising that function, 

supplemented with the provisions in Law 
The Board of Directors has assessed the no.297/2004 regarding the capital market and 
independence of its non-executive members CNVM Regulation no.15/2004 and are 
based on the criteria provided in art. 138ˆ2 in authorized in this position by CNVM Certificate 
Company Law no. 31/1990, republished and no.7 of January 24, 2006.
updated and on  the Recommendation no.16 The senior managers are invited to Board 
in BSE Code of Corporate Governance. meetings and they inform or report to the 

Board on the items of the agenda.
Audit Committee

Pursuant the legal provisions, an audit 
committee was set up within the Board of 
Directors, fulfilling an advisory role, consisting 
of two non-executive board members. As of 
December 31, 2010, Messrs Ion Stancu and 
Zoltan Hosszu were members of the audit 
committee.

The Audit Committee assists the Board of 
Directors in accomplishing its responsibilities 
regarding the financial reporting, internal 
control and risk management, having the 
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taken by the affirmative vote of a majority of The Audit Committee supports the Board of 
those present, according to the provisions of Directors in monitoring the reliability and 
the By-Laws. From the implementation integrity of the financial information provided 
perspective, all decisions were fully by the Company, especially by reviewing the 
implemented. Details regarding the Board of relevance and consistency of the accounting 
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According to the provisions of SIF Banat- and Mrs Carmen Dumitrescu.
Crișana's By-Laws, the Chairman of the Board 
of Directors is also Company's Chief Executive The senior managers are empowered to 
Officer. Part of the powers of the Board of manage and co-ordinate Company's day-to-
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The Board of Directors has assessed the no.297/2004 regarding the capital market and 
independence of its non-executive members CNVM Regulation no.15/2004 and are 
based on the criteria provided in art. 138ˆ2 in authorized in this position by CNVM Certificate 
Company Law no. 31/1990, republished and no.7 of January 24, 2006.
updated and on  the Recommendation no.16 The senior managers are invited to Board 
in BSE Code of Corporate Governance. meetings and they inform or report to the 
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Directors, fulfilling an advisory role, consisting 
of two non-executive board members. As of 
December 31, 2010, Messrs Ion Stancu and 
Zoltan Hosszu were members of the audit 
committee.

The Audit Committee assists the Board of 
Directors in accomplishing its responsibilities 
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control and risk management, having the 
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Shareholders’ rights aggregate holdings exceed 1% of the share 
capital of SIF Banat-Crișana, the suspension of 
voting rights operates pro rata.

SIF Banat-Crişana ensures an equitable 
treatment of all shareholders, including the 
minority and foreign shareholders in For the Ordinary General Meeting of 
accordance with the legal requirements and Shareholders of April 30, 2010, the Board of 
Company's By-Laws. Directors approved the procedures on the 

orderly and efficient organization of the 
workings of the meeting, in accordance with 

As of December 31, 2010, SIF Banat-Crişana the legal requirements and related CNVM 
had 5,834,485 shareholders as reported by regulations. All the information and materials 
Depozitarul Central SA Bucharest. related to the AGM were made available to 
SIF Banat-Crișana observes the rights of its shareholders at the Company's headquarters 

and posted on its website, 
namely: the AGM convening 
notice, informative materials and 
documents proposed for 
discussion and submitted for 
approval at the AGM, 
participation and voting 
procedures, the special proxy 
forms and the voting forms by 
correspondence, the AGM 
resolutions and the voting results 
for each item on the agenda. All 
Board members, the executive 
management board and the shareholders, 

representatives of the external auditor were making available for them relevant and 
present at the AGM, being prepared to answer updated information and ensuring that the 
to any question relevant to shareholders shareholders will make use of their rights in an 
related to Company's activity.equitable manner. The information regarding 

the activity of the Company, considered to 
influence the stock exchange prices,  is the 

All existing shareholders as of the record date subject of current reports or press releases, 
are entitled to the dividends approved by the sent in 24 hours to the market, being available 
Ordinary General Meeting of the Shareholders to investors on BSE website (www.bvb.ro) and 
of the Company. The dividend payment is on Company's own website (www.sif1.ro). The 
made in accordance with the legal provisions corporate website is a powerful means of 
and the AGM resolutions.communication with its shareholders. The 

section dedicated to investor relations hosts 
information of shareholders' interest and all the SIF Banat-Crișana had 5,842,436 shareholders 
reports on Company's activity, in Romanian with dividend rights as of May 18, 2010, the 
and English. To ensure investors equal access record date for the Ordinary General Meeting 
to information, the reports and press releases of the Shareholders of April 30, 2010. The 
addressed to market participants are posted dividend payments were made through the 
on Company's website subsequent to being following methods: cash payments (for 
posted on the market operator's website, individual shareholders); bank transfer 
namely the BSE. payments (for individual and corporate 

shareholders), postal mandate payments (for SIF Banat-Crișana makes the best endeavors to 
resident individuals with holdings between 200 facilitate the participation of shareholders at 
and 5,000 shares). All information related to the annual general meetings of shareholders. 
dividend payment (AGM resolutions, methods, SIF Banat-Crișana shareholders may participate 
procedures and dividend payment periods) directly at the AGM or appointing a 
was disclosed to shareholders in accordance representative upon a proxy or they may vote 
with the legal requirements of information by correspondence (by post or by electronic 
(media, Company's website, the BSE and voting available on Company's website).
CNVM electronic system).

In accordance with art. 286ˆ1, paragraph 1 and 
The organizational structure that ensures the 2 of Law no.297/2004 regarding the capital 
relationship with the shareholders and the market, at the AGM, the exercise of voting 
interested public is the Communication and rights for the shares exceeding the threshold of 
Investor Relations Office. Contact: Calea 1% of SIF Banat-Crişana's share capital by a 
Victoriei 35A, 310158 Arad, Romania, tel/fax: shareholder, alone or together with persons 
0040 257 304 446, email: comunicare@sif1.ro.that act or are presumed to act in concert, is 

suspended. The persons who act or are 
presumed to act in concert and whose 
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Corporate governance (continued)

SIF Banat-Crișana’s shareholders structure, as per 
holdings, as at December 31, 2010

5,832,448  Romanian natural persons

1,581 non-resident natural persons

371 Romanian legal persons

85 non-resident legal persons

52.36%

0.67%

19.67%

27.30%

Corporate governance (continued)

Transparency, financial reporting, internal PFR13/RCCI/020033. The internal control 
control and risk management report is presented at page 23 of the Annual 

Report.
SIF Banat-Crișana pays great attention to 
transparency in communication. Considering Conflict of interests and transactions with 
that public trust is also crucial for the related parties
operation of the company, SIF Banat-Crișana's 
communication policy is a precise and mutual The Board of Directors adopted operational 
commitment between the company and its solutions to facilitate the proper identification 
interlocutors. Meeting the reporting and adequate handling of those situations 
requirements and communication where a board member and employee is 
transparency are means to build up trust and bearer of a material interest on their own 
lasting and mutually beneficial relationships behalf or on behalf of third parties.
with the stakeholders. SIF Banat-Crișana 
strives to ensure continuous and periodic Every board member ensures that he/she 
reporting to the market and CNVM in an avoids any direct or indirect conflict of 
objective and fair manner, covering all the interests with SIF Banat-Crișana or the 
important aspects of the company's business, companies under its control. If there is a 
financial situation, applicable accounting conflict of interests, the respective board 
policies and performance. member must inform the BoD and shall 

refrain from the debate and vote on the 
The information published or released by SIF relevant issue.
Banat-Crișana from January to December 
2010 is listed in Appendix 3 to the annual The Board of Directors adopted a Code of 
report posted on Company's website. During Ethics and Business Conduct, comprising a 
2010, reports and press releases were set of mandatory rules for management and 
prepared regarding the financial results, AGM employees with the aim to protect the 
convening and resolutions, periodical interest of SIF Banat-Crișana's shareholders 
reporting (monthly, quarterly, half yearly, and market integrity. The Code provides 
annual), litigations, significant transactions, comprehensive rules regarding: the 
dividend distribution, etc. The information compliance with the legal requirements and 
presented in the compulsory reports – observance of internal procedures, conflict of 
current and periodic reports – was also interests, confidentiality of data and 
presented on Company's website, information, treatment of inside information, 
www.sif1.ro, in Romanian and English. prohibited transactions, refraining from acts 

of market manipulation.
As regards the financial reporting system for 
2010, SIF Banat-Crișana complied with the Pursuant Law no. 297/2004 and CNVM 
Accounting Regulations in accordance with Regulation no.1/2006, insiders and persons 
4th Directive EEC applicable to the entities with access to inside information about SIF 
authorized, regulated and supervised by Banat-Crișana must notify the CNVM and the 
CNVM, approved by CNVM President Order Company of any transaction with SIF Banat-
no.75/2009 and which is applicable together Crișana shares. The notifications are posted 
with the Accounting Law no.82/1991 on BSE website and Company's website.
(republished and amended).

Treatment of corporate information
In accordance with the legal provisions, the 
financial-accounting statements and those The members of the Board of Directors, 
regarding SIF Banat-Crișana's operations are executive directors and employees of SIF 
audited by KPMG Audit SRL, an independent Banat-Crișana must keep the confidentiality 
financial auditor appointed by the AGM of of the documents and corporate information 
April 25, 2009 for a period of two years and shall comply with the Code of Ethics and 

Business Conduct and the procedures 
In accordance with CNVM Regulations approved by the BoD regarding the 
no. 15/2004, the Board of Directors has set treatment of corporate information.
up under its authority the Internal Control 
Office, whose role is to supervise Company's The Board of Directors adopted procedures 
and its employees' compliance with laws, regarding the internal handling and 
regulations, instructions and procedures disclosure to third party of the documents 
applicable to the capital market as well as and information relating to SIF Banat-Crișana, 
with Company's internal rules and focusing on the treatment of privileged 
procedures. The representative of the Internal information, as defined by Law no. 297/2004, 
Control Office is authorized by CNVM which may influence the market price of the 
Decision no. 3521 / 29.12.2005 and is shares issued by SIF Banat-Crișana.
registered with CNVM Register under no. 
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capital of SIF Banat-Crișana, the suspension of 
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SIF Banat-Crișana’s shareholders structure, as per 
holdings, as at December 31, 2010

5,832,448  Romanian natural persons
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371 Romanian legal persons
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Corporate governance (continued)

Transparency, financial reporting, internal PFR13/RCCI/020033. The internal control 
control and risk management report is presented at page 23 of the Annual 

Report.
SIF Banat-Crișana pays great attention to 
transparency in communication. Considering Conflict of interests and transactions with 
that public trust is also crucial for the related parties
operation of the company, SIF Banat-Crișana's 
communication policy is a precise and mutual The Board of Directors adopted operational 
commitment between the company and its solutions to facilitate the proper identification 
interlocutors. Meeting the reporting and adequate handling of those situations 
requirements and communication where a board member and employee is 
transparency are means to build up trust and bearer of a material interest on their own 
lasting and mutually beneficial relationships behalf or on behalf of third parties.
with the stakeholders. SIF Banat-Crișana 
strives to ensure continuous and periodic Every board member ensures that he/she 
reporting to the market and CNVM in an avoids any direct or indirect conflict of 
objective and fair manner, covering all the interests with SIF Banat-Crișana or the 
important aspects of the company's business, companies under its control. If there is a 
financial situation, applicable accounting conflict of interests, the respective board 
policies and performance. member must inform the BoD and shall 

refrain from the debate and vote on the 
The information published or released by SIF relevant issue.
Banat-Crișana from January to December 
2010 is listed in Appendix 3 to the annual The Board of Directors adopted a Code of 
report posted on Company's website. During Ethics and Business Conduct, comprising a 
2010, reports and press releases were set of mandatory rules for management and 
prepared regarding the financial results, AGM employees with the aim to protect the 
convening and resolutions, periodical interest of SIF Banat-Crișana's shareholders 
reporting (monthly, quarterly, half yearly, and market integrity. The Code provides 
annual), litigations, significant transactions, comprehensive rules regarding: the 
dividend distribution, etc. The information compliance with the legal requirements and 
presented in the compulsory reports – observance of internal procedures, conflict of 
current and periodic reports – was also interests, confidentiality of data and 
presented on Company's website, information, treatment of inside information, 
www.sif1.ro, in Romanian and English. prohibited transactions, refraining from acts 

of market manipulation.
As regards the financial reporting system for 
2010, SIF Banat-Crișana complied with the Pursuant Law no. 297/2004 and CNVM 
Accounting Regulations in accordance with Regulation no.1/2006, insiders and persons 
4th Directive EEC applicable to the entities with access to inside information about SIF 
authorized, regulated and supervised by Banat-Crișana must notify the CNVM and the 
CNVM, approved by CNVM President Order Company of any transaction with SIF Banat-
no.75/2009 and which is applicable together Crișana shares. The notifications are posted 
with the Accounting Law no.82/1991 on BSE website and Company's website.
(republished and amended).

Treatment of corporate information
In accordance with the legal provisions, the 
financial-accounting statements and those The members of the Board of Directors, 
regarding SIF Banat-Crișana's operations are executive directors and employees of SIF 
audited by KPMG Audit SRL, an independent Banat-Crișana must keep the confidentiality 
financial auditor appointed by the AGM of of the documents and corporate information 
April 25, 2009 for a period of two years and shall comply with the Code of Ethics and 

Business Conduct and the procedures 
In accordance with CNVM Regulations approved by the BoD regarding the 
no. 15/2004, the Board of Directors has set treatment of corporate information.
up under its authority the Internal Control 
Office, whose role is to supervise Company's The Board of Directors adopted procedures 
and its employees' compliance with laws, regarding the internal handling and 
regulations, instructions and procedures disclosure to third party of the documents 
applicable to the capital market as well as and information relating to SIF Banat-Crișana, 
with Company's internal rules and focusing on the treatment of privileged 
procedures. The representative of the Internal information, as defined by Law no. 297/2004, 
Control Office is authorized by CNVM which may influence the market price of the 
Decision no. 3521 / 29.12.2005 and is shares issued by SIF Banat-Crișana.
registered with CNVM Register under no. 
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from 235.740 by year-end 2009. but also with a drop of 7.98% of the BET-FI 
index, respectively a drop of 24.98% of the 

Forex RASDAQ-C index. 

In 2010, the EUR appreciated against the RON The evolution of the BET-index on BSE, of 
to RON 4.2848 for 1 EUR at year-end 2010 12.32% ranks 45 of the 81 stock exchanges in 
from RON 4.2265 as of January 4, 2010, up by the world during 2010 (according to the 
+1.37%. analysis of Bespoke Investment Group).

The USD recorded a stronger appreciation PER multiple for the BSE market declined 
against the RON (up by +8.99%) to RON considerably in 2010 vs 2009, to 10.74% from 
3.2045 at year-end 2010 from RON 2.9401 for 14.42%, the PVB multiple increased slightly to 
1 USD as of January 4, 2010. 1.08 from 1.04 while the dividend yield fell to 

1.87% in 2010 from 2.81% in 2009.
Capital market

The capital market showed a mixed trend with 
an increase (RON) of 14.6% of the BET-C index, 

 
Annual average inflate rate (IPC) 

(eurostat) 
2009 2010 

        EU (27 countries)  1% 2.1% 

        Euro zone (17 countries)  0.3% 1.6% 

        Romania  5.6% 6.1% 

 
GDP evolution (eurostat) 2009 2010 

        EU (27 countries) -4.3% 1.8% 

        Euro zone (17 countries) -4.1% 1.7% 

        Romania -7.1% -1.3% 

Macro-economic indicators 72.01 bn, of which loans from IMF amounted 
to EUR 9.08 bn.

The preliminary data provided by the National 
Institute of Statistics (INS) show a decrease in Romania's long-term loans denominated in 
the GDP in 2010, by gross series, of only 1.3%, foreign currency have been assigned the 
although the National Prognosis Commission following ratings (according to mfinante.ro): 
(CNP) estimated a decrease in GDP in 2010 of BB+ stable perspective, in February 2010 
1.9%, in line with the International Monetary according to Fitch and BB+ stable perspective, 
Fund (IMF) forecasts. In accordance with the in March 2010 according to Standard & Poor's. 
preliminary estimates of INS, the GDP in Q4 
2010 was, in real terms, up by 0.1% compared From the loan of EUR 12.9 bn from the 
to Q3 2010 (seasonally adjusted). GDP International Monetary Fund, granted based 
dropped by 0.6% compared to the same on the current credit agreement of Romania 
quarter in 2009 by gross series. with international institutions, EUR 9.5 bn was 

assigned to NBR and EUR 2.4 bn to the 
Ministry of Finance. The last installment, of EUR 
1 bn, which was supposed to be assigned to 
NBR, will be deemed as “precautionary” and 
will no longer be used as the reserves are at an 
acceptable level.

Data provided by NBR show that the direct 
The annual inflation rate (December 2010 vs foreign investments (FDI) totaled EUR 2.552 bn. 
December 2009) was of 7.96% (according to The volume of direct investments, net, declined 
bnr.ro). The annual average inflation rate was by 28.19% compared to 2009, when it reached 
of 6.1%, the highest rate in the EU (27) where a level of EUR 3.554 bn. 
the average rate was of 2.1 % (according to 
Eurostat). As the NBR inflation rate was of Money market and credit market
3.5%±1 percentage point, the target was 
missed in 2010. The money market policy interest rate showed 

a decreasing trend, being of only 6.25% as of 
December 31, 2010. This trend was adopted 
by the NBR as a necessary condition for 
reducing the bank interest and stimulating the 
lending process.

The weight of overdue and doubtful loans in 
total loans portfolio, net values, had an 

The unemployment rate in December 2010 alarming high increase by end-year 2010 up to 
was of 6.87% compared to 7.8% in December 2.23% from only 1.45% by year-end 2009. In 
2009. The total number of unemployed people absolute volume, the total amount of overdue 
registered with the employment agencies was payments in the Romanian banking system was 
of 626,960 persons (according to anofm.ro) of RON 15.03 bn in December 2010 vs. 
Romania's total foreign debt rose in 2010 to December 2009. Also, the total number of 
EUR 90.76 bn. The medium and long term outstanding debtors (individuals and legal 
external debt at year-end 2010 was of EUR persons) rose to 243.041 by year-end 2010 

Social responsibility better management of environmental issues, as 
well as involvement in community projects.

SIF Banat-Crișana assumes responsibilities not 
only towards its shareholders but also towards In 2010, SIF Banat-Crișana financed several 
neighboring communities and other groups local projects in health, education and sports.
involved or affected by its activity.

Social responsibility aims to ensure standards 
for workplace safety, adopting procedures for a 
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from 235.740 by year-end 2009. but also with a drop of 7.98% of the BET-FI 
index, respectively a drop of 24.98% of the 

Forex RASDAQ-C index. 

In 2010, the EUR appreciated against the RON The evolution of the BET-index on BSE, of 
to RON 4.2848 for 1 EUR at year-end 2010 12.32% ranks 45 of the 81 stock exchanges in 
from RON 4.2265 as of January 4, 2010, up by the world during 2010 (according to the 
+1.37%. analysis of Bespoke Investment Group).

The USD recorded a stronger appreciation PER multiple for the BSE market declined 
against the RON (up by +8.99%) to RON considerably in 2010 vs 2009, to 10.74% from 
3.2045 at year-end 2010 from RON 2.9401 for 14.42%, the PVB multiple increased slightly to 
1 USD as of January 4, 2010. 1.08 from 1.04 while the dividend yield fell to 

1.87% in 2010 from 2.81% in 2009.
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an increase (RON) of 14.6% of the BET-C index, 

 
Annual average inflate rate (IPC) 

(eurostat) 
2009 2010 

        EU (27 countries)  1% 2.1% 

        Euro zone (17 countries)  0.3% 1.6% 

        Romania  5.6% 6.1% 

 
GDP evolution (eurostat) 2009 2010 

        EU (27 countries) -4.3% 1.8% 

        Euro zone (17 countries) -4.1% 1.7% 

        Romania -7.1% -1.3% 

Macro-economic indicators 72.01 bn, of which loans from IMF amounted 
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 2009 2010 
yoy 

variation 

Portfolio value* (RON) 1,472,841,215 1,303,991,852 88.54% 

Income from sale of shares (RON) 63,054,973 34,087,412 54.06% 

Profitul from sales (lei) 19,805,648 17,236,881 87.03% 

Dividend income** (lei)  72,785,657  13,012,833  17.88% 

Value of investments  (lei) 24,049,835 33,217,974 138.12% 

Number of companies in portfolio 305 277 90.82% 

 

The dividend income exceeded the level As of December 31, 2010, compared to the 
expected for 2010 (in 2010 Budget: RON 11.2 market value of the portfolio, the most 
mn). significant weight in the portfolio structure is 

represented by the banking-finance sector 
The low volume of dividends of only 18% (60.73%), tourism and public food services 
compared to 2009, is the result of BCR's (8.32%) and trade and real estate field (8.19%).
decision to capitalize profits and not to pay out 
dividends. The banking-finance sector held the most 

significant weight in the portfolio. The value of 
The investments made in 2010 exceed by 38% the holdings, computed according to CNVM 
the volume of investments in 2009, continuing regulations, had a slight decline compared to 
the prudent investment policy adopted in the 2009, mainly due to the downward trend of 
past two years and oriented towards issuers the stocks listed on BSE, namely BRD and 
with high growth and income potential. Banca Transilvania at year-end 2010.

The portfolio was downsized with 28 issuers, as 
a result of sale transactions and completion of 
some withdrawal or winding-up operations.

Key indicators of portfolio management

Stock portfolio structure
on the field of activity

**computed according to CNVM Reg. no. 15/2004 and CNVM Dispositions  no. 9/2010 and 21/2010
and certified by ING Bank N.V. Amsterdam, Bucharest branch (SIF Banat-Crișana’s depository)
** representing only the cash dividends for the previous fiscal year

 
Field of activity 

No. of companies Portfolio market value (RON) 

2009 2010 31.12.2009 31.12.2010 

Banking - finance 13 13 823,094,419 791,907,748 

Tourism and public food service 11 11 257,222,541 108,540,985 

Trade and real estate 55 51 99,034,734 106,850,718 

Other industries (manufacture of 

structural metal produsts, machinery 

and equipments etc.)                    
34 33 94,327,929 103,796,385 

Pulp and paper 8 8 47,734,105 51,741,037 

Pharmaceuticals 5 3 41,718,828 39,288,575 

Chemicals and plastics 8 10 26,702,796 25,794,656 

Energy and utilities 9 9 25,363,962 26,350,278 

Steel manufacturing 9 7 14,059,593 11,786,998 

Wood processing 57 51 11,767,108 11,980,367 

Construction 13 10 9,516,895 7,414,382 

Food industry 10 8 3,805,269 4,611,110 

Agriculture 34 28 1,134,502 57,728 

Other activities 39 35 17,358,534 13,870,885 

Total 305 277 1,472,841,215 1,303,991,852 

Portfolio management

 December 31, 2009 December 31, 2010 yoy  

 
RON 

weight in 

assets 
RON 

weight in 

assets 

variation 

State certificates, 

Treasury bills 
2,431,442 0.15% 15,215,408 1.07% 525.78% 

Cash available 331,437 0.02% 553,518 0.04% 67.01% 

Receivables 3,362,920 0.21% 4,950,431 0.35% 47.21% 

Bank deposits 126,541,975 7.84% 92,822,065 6.51% -26.65% 

Municipal bonds 37,677 0.00% 13,456 0.00% -64.29% 

Corporate bonds 2,055,925 0.13% 1,042,647 0.07% -49.29% 

Listed share 1,033,515,053 64.01% 834,208,524 58.55% -19.28% 

Unlisted shares 439,326,162 27.21% 469,783,328 32.97% 6.93% 

Other assets 6,906,341 0.43% 6,157,167 0.43% -10.85% 

Total assets 1,614,508,931 100% 1,424,746,545 100% -11.75% 

Total liabilities 72,979,995 4.52% 63,337,064 4.45% -1.21% 

Net asset 1,541,528,936 95.48% 1,361,409,481 95.55% -11.68% 
Net asset value per share 
(RON/share) 2.8087  2.4805  -11.69% 

 

Assets under management

values computed according to CNVM Reg. no. 15/2004 and CNVM Dispositions  no. 9/2010 and 21/2010

and certified by ING Bank N.V. Amsterdam, Bucharest branch (SIF Banat-Crișana’s depository)

Throughout 2010, SIF Banat-Crişana's assets Stock portfolio
under management were in compliance with 
the prudential holding limits set forth by Law Under the general economic context, 
no.297/2004 and CNVM Regulation no. SIF Banat-Crișana focused on efficient and 
15/2004. prudent portfolio management with a 

particular focus on reducing the associated 
The total value of assets under management of risk.
SIF Banat-Crişana was of RON 1,424.7 mn as of 
December 31, 2010, down by 11.75% yoy. As of December 31, 2010, the stock portfolio 

represented 91.52% of the total value of the 
The comparative analysis of the assets portfolio assets under management and complied 
as of December 31, 2010 versus December 31, throughout 2010 with the prudential holding 
2009 highlights the following significant limits set forth by Law no. 297/2004 and 
aspects: CNVM Regulation no.15/2004.

• slight increase in the weight of 
government securities in total assets, as a At 2010 year-end, the overall value of the stock 
result of prudent portfolio diversification portfolio was lower by 11.46% against 2009, 
strategies; decrease determined mainly by the drop in the 

• decline in market value by 19.28% of prices of some stocks with significant weight in 
listed shares, as a result of the depreciation of the portfolio.
several shares traded on BSE;

• surge in market value by 6.93% of The income from transactions was lower than 
unlisted shares, primarily as a result of the in 2009, but in line with the expected 
upward trend of the shareholders' equity of the objectives in the financial plan for 2010.
banks in the portfolio, that have a significant 
weight in this asset class. The main factors that influenced negatively the 

sales in 2010 were the reduced market liquidity 
SIF Banat-Crișana's net asset value, computed (BSE) and the low stock quotes that could 
in accordance with CNVM regulations, reached generate the risk of recording income below 
RON 1,361.4 mn as of December 31, 2010, the expense with the disposal of securities.
down by 11.68% compared to year-end 2009.

The sales profit in 2010, even if lower in value 
As of December 31, 2010, the net asset value than in 2009, provided a higher yield of 50.5% 
per share was of RON 2.4805 compared to compared to 31.4% in 2009.
2.8087 RON/share as of December 31, 2009.
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The dividend income exceeded the level As of December 31, 2010, compared to the 
expected for 2010 (in 2010 Budget: RON 11.2 market value of the portfolio, the most 
mn). significant weight in the portfolio structure is 

represented by the banking-finance sector 
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Trade and real estate 55 51 99,034,734 106,850,718 

Other industries (manufacture of 

structural metal produsts, machinery 
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Pulp and paper 8 8 47,734,105 51,741,037 

Pharmaceuticals 5 3 41,718,828 39,288,575 
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under management were in compliance with 
the prudential holding limits set forth by Law Under the general economic context, 
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represented 91.52% of the total value of the 
The comparative analysis of the assets portfolio assets under management and complied 
as of December 31, 2010 versus December 31, throughout 2010 with the prudential holding 
2009 highlights the following significant limits set forth by Law no. 297/2004 and 
aspects: CNVM Regulation no.15/2004.

• slight increase in the weight of 
government securities in total assets, as a At 2010 year-end, the overall value of the stock 
result of prudent portfolio diversification portfolio was lower by 11.46% against 2009, 
strategies; decrease determined mainly by the drop in the 

• decline in market value by 19.28% of prices of some stocks with significant weight in 
listed shares, as a result of the depreciation of the portfolio.
several shares traded on BSE;

• surge in market value by 6.93% of The income from transactions was lower than 
unlisted shares, primarily as a result of the in 2009, but in line with the expected 
upward trend of the shareholders' equity of the objectives in the financial plan for 2010.
banks in the portfolio, that have a significant 
weight in this asset class. The main factors that influenced negatively the 
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in accordance with CNVM regulations, reached generate the risk of recording income below 
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The market value of the portfolio of listed (ii) sale of stakes held in issuers that do not 
companies declined by 19.28% in 2010 vs 2009 meet the portfolio criteria and disposal of 
while the market value of the portfolio of shares at the best price available.
unlisted companies increased by 6.93% as a 
result of the upward trend of the equity of the Sales volume in 2010 was adversely influenced 
banks included in this category. by the reduced liquidity on the Romanian 

market and the stock quotes that did not meet 
The value of SIF Banat-Crișana's holdings the price targets for divestment.
between 5% and 33% diminished by only 2.4% 
against 2009, while the number of issuers in In 2010, the sales turnover amounted to 
this category dropped significantly in 2010 as a RON 34,087,412, the profit achieved being of 
result of: RON 17,236,881, respectively a return of 

(i) full withdrawal from a company ( Argus 50.56%.
SA Salonta); 

(ii) sale of entire stakes in 7 issuers; From total sales, the transactions with listed 
(iii) strike-off from the Trade Register of 17 shares represented 79.08% (RON 26.95 mn), 

portfolio companies as a result of the 14.64% (RON 4.99% mn) transactions with 
completion of the winding-up procedures unlisted shares, and 6.28% (RON 2.14 mn)  
initiated in the previous years. transactions with subscription rights and 

fund units.
SIF Banat-Crișana as majority shareholder

In 2010, SIF Banat-Crișana fully sold the 
As of December 31, 2011, SIF Banat-Crişana holdings in 8 issuers.
held majority stakes in 31 companies. In its 
capacity as a majority shareholder, SIF Banat- Significant transactions were made in 2010 
Crişana could undertake several measures from the sale of shares held in: Prodplast 
meant to improve the efficiency of these Imobiliare (PPLI), obtaining profit from 
companies: transactions of RON 3.98 mn, BRD Groupe 

• conducting rigorous monitoring and Société  Générale (BRD) – profit of RON 
analysis of the activity and providing 5.27 mn, Electromagnetica (ELMA) – profit of 
consultancy to management teams to enhance RON 2.38 mn, Napocom – profit of RON 
business profitability, efficiency and 2.16 mn, Teraplast (TRP) – profit of RON 
development; 1.44 mn, Banca Transilvania (TLV) – profit of 

• implementing adequate corporate RON 1.48 mn.
governance practices;

Investments• ensuring an efficient management by 
encouraging the promotion of performance-

SIF Banat-Crișana pursued a prudent oriented individuals in administrative and 
acquisition strategy, the investments being executive structures; SIF Banat-Crişana 
directed to the development of strategic coordinated the conclusion of 27 
investment projects.administration contracts between companies 

and the board of directors while setting up 
The investments completed in 2010 performance objectives and criteria to boost 
amounted to RON 33,317,974. This value the development of the companies;
includes also payments of RON 10.55 mn • identifying synergistic effects between 
made in 2010 to Calipso Oradea, subscribed in companies and promoting mergers meant to 
2008. improve the efficiency of activities and to 

complete investment projects; in 2010, the 
Other significant investments were made with merger process  between SC Comalim Arad SA 
shares in Fondul Proprietatea (RON 8.23 mn), (absorbing company) and SC Combi Spedition 
BRD Groupe Société Générale (RON 6.27 SA Arad (absorbed company) was started.
mn), Napomar (RON 4.48 mn), Biofarm (RON 
2.46 mn).In 2010, the income from cash dividends 

related to 2009 fiscal year totaled 
The investments made in 2010 on the RON 13,012,833 out of which the amount of 
primary capital market (participation in share RON 12,354,818 was collected until December 
capital increases) amounted to RON 15.04 mn, 31, 2010, representing 94.9%.
representing 45.3% of total investments.

Transactions on the capital market
The acquisitions of shares on the secondary 
market in 2010 (acquisition of shares listed on The transactions made in 2010 focused on two 
BSE or Rasdaq Electronic Stock Exchange and main objectives depending on issuers: 
direct transactions), amounted to RON 18.17 (i) seizing market opportunities and 
mn, representing 54.7% of total investments.achieving profits; 

Company, city Field of activity Stake in % 

Holdings as of 

December 31, 2010  

[k RON] 

BRD - Groupe Société Générale  banking - finance 4.65% 393,008.84 

Banca Comercială Română banking - finance 6.00% 291,288.55 

Banca Transilvania  banking - finance 4.92% 86,401.63 

Napomar, Cluj-Napoca  machinery & equip. 99.43% 44,893.57 

Calipso, Oradea tourism, public food 96.30% 44,518.45 

Vrancart, Adjud  pulp and paper 74.72% 42,496.57 

Biofarm, Bucharest pharmaceuticals 16.63% 35,075.69 

IAMU, Blaj machinery & equip. 76.69% 34,673.24 

Arta Culinară, Cluj-Napoca 
tourism, public food, 

real estate 
89.45% 33,044.49 

Central, Petroşani  real estate 100% 16,831.89 

Comalim, Arad real estate 82.73% 13,397.80 

Teraplast GP, Bistriţa plastics 10.48% 13,306.09 

Complex Laboratoare,  

Cluj-Napoca 
real estate 98.83% 10,540.68 

Vest Metal, Oradea real estate 98.95% 8,829.95 

Comcereal Cluj agriculture 86.28% 8,723.71 

Combi Spedition, Arad imobiliare 98.75% 8,677.14 

Petrom, Bucureşti energy-utilities 0.05% 8,480.53 

Somplast, Bistriţa plastics 70.75% 8,414.69 

Trans Euro Hotel, Baia Mare tourism, public food 99.93% 7,324.57 

Valy-Tim, Timişoara tourism, public food 100% 7,197.07 

 

Top 20 holdings in SIF Banat-Crișana portfolio

Portfolio structure No. of companies Portfolio’s market value [RON] 

2009 2010 2009 2010 

Listed companies 134 124 1,033,515,053 834,208,524 

Unlisted companies 171 153 439,326,162 469,783,328 

Total portfolio 305 277 1,472,841,215 1,303,991,852 

 

Stock portfolio structure
on listed / unlisted companies

Stock portfolio structure
on the size of the stakes held in the share capital of companies

Stake held 
No. of companies Portfolio’s market value [RON] 

2009 2010 2009 2010 

< 5% 84 82 586,592,993 538,709,894 

5-33% 181 156 434,321,207 423,860,291 

33-50% 9 8 1,820,656 1,507,334 

> 50% 31 31 450,106,359 339,914,333 

Total portfolio 305 277 1,472,841,215 1,303,991,852 
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SIF Banat-Crișana pursued a prudent oriented individuals in administrative and 
acquisition strategy, the investments being executive structures; SIF Banat-Crişana 
directed to the development of strategic coordinated the conclusion of 27 
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Transactions on the capital market
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Company, city Field of activity Stake in % 

Holdings as of 

December 31, 2010  

[k RON] 

BRD - Groupe Société Générale  banking - finance 4.65% 393,008.84 

Banca Comercială Română banking - finance 6.00% 291,288.55 

Banca Transilvania  banking - finance 4.92% 86,401.63 

Napomar, Cluj-Napoca  machinery & equip. 99.43% 44,893.57 

Calipso, Oradea tourism, public food 96.30% 44,518.45 

Vrancart, Adjud  pulp and paper 74.72% 42,496.57 

Biofarm, Bucharest pharmaceuticals 16.63% 35,075.69 

IAMU, Blaj machinery & equip. 76.69% 34,673.24 

Arta Culinară, Cluj-Napoca 
tourism, public food, 

real estate 
89.45% 33,044.49 

Central, Petroşani  real estate 100% 16,831.89 

Comalim, Arad real estate 82.73% 13,397.80 

Teraplast GP, Bistriţa plastics 10.48% 13,306.09 

Complex Laboratoare,  

Cluj-Napoca 
real estate 98.83% 10,540.68 

Vest Metal, Oradea real estate 98.95% 8,829.95 

Comcereal Cluj agriculture 86.28% 8,723.71 

Combi Spedition, Arad imobiliare 98.75% 8,677.14 

Petrom, Bucureşti energy-utilities 0.05% 8,480.53 

Somplast, Bistriţa plastics 70.75% 8,414.69 

Trans Euro Hotel, Baia Mare tourism, public food 99.93% 7,324.57 

Valy-Tim, Timişoara tourism, public food 100% 7,197.07 

 

Top 20 holdings in SIF Banat-Crișana portfolio

Portfolio structure No. of companies Portfolio’s market value [RON] 

2009 2010 2009 2010 

Listed companies 134 124 1,033,515,053 834,208,524 

Unlisted companies 171 153 439,326,162 469,783,328 

Total portfolio 305 277 1,472,841,215 1,303,991,852 

 

Stock portfolio structure
on listed / unlisted companies

Stock portfolio structure
on the size of the stakes held in the share capital of companies

Stake held 
No. of companies Portfolio’s market value [RON] 

2009 2010 2009 2010 

< 5% 84 82 586,592,993 538,709,894 

5-33% 181 156 434,321,207 423,860,291 

33-50% 9 8 1,820,656 1,507,334 

> 50% 31 31 450,106,359 339,914,333 

Total portfolio 305 277 1,472,841,215 1,303,991,852 
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Risk management

Currency risk Cash flow risk
In 2010, the Company has conducted By the scope of its activity, SIF Banat-Crișana is 
transactions both in the Romanian currency not subject to a major risk of changing the 
(RON) and in foreign currency. Romanian projected cash flows, both from financial 
currency fluctuated in 2010 against foreign instruments fluctuation and the interest rate 
currencies (EUR and USD), appreciating by changes.
year-end while the financial result of the 
current activity in 2010 was exposed to some Economic environment risk
favorable influences due to exchange rate The process of re-pricing, which occurred in 
fluctuations. the international financial markets in recent 

years, has severely affected their performance, 
The financial instruments used enable the including the financial markets in Romania, 
conservation of the value of monetary assets in leading to an increased uncertainty about 
RON, by making investments and receiving future economic developments.
interest depending on the term of maturity. 
The company did not carry out any The effects of international financial crisis were 
transactions with derivatives during 2010 fiscal felt on the Romanian financial market 
year. particularly as: downfall of the RASDAQ 

Electronic stock market, worsening behavior on 
Interest rate risk timely payment of loans correlated with 
In 2010, most of SIF Banat-Crișana's financial increase in bad debts and corresponding 
assets were denominated in stable currencies, provisions in the banking system, drop in 
whose interest rates we estimate will not profitability in the banking and financial sector, 
fluctuate significantly. domestic currency depreciation, continued 

slide in real estate prices, negative evolution of 
Price risk the macroeconomic indicators (inflation, state 
In 2009 and 2010, as a result of the global deficit, current account deficit, decrease in 
financial crisis, Romania was affected too by direct foreign investments, etc).
price risk through the depreciation of stock 
quotes. SIF Banat-Crișana's management cannot 

foresee all the effects of the crisis with impact 
Considering the significant weight in total on the financial sector in Romania, but it 
assets managed by SIF Banat-Crișana, the believes that, in 2010, it has adopted the 
portfolio was adversely affected by price risk. necessary measures for Company's 

sustainability and development under the 
Credit risk existing market conditions, through: 
The financial assets which potentially subject monitoring cash flows and adequacy of 
the Company to concentrations of credit risks investment policy. 
include mainly receivables from core activity. 
These are presented net of adjustments for 
doubtful debts. Company's management 
closely and constantly monitors the exposure 
to credit risk in order to reduce losses due to 
credit concentrations in a particular industry or 
area of activity.

Liquidity risk
The Company thoroughly supervised the 
evolution of liquidity in order to be able to pay 
the obligations on the date they are due. The 
assets and liabilities were analyzed relative to 
the time remaining until contractual maturity.

Considering its scope of business, SIF Banat-Crișana is exposed to a large 
series of financial risks. Company's management strives to mitigate the 
potential adverse effects associated to risks on SIF Banat-Crișana's financial 
performance and reputation.

The portfolio of fixed income financial Interest rate risk reduction was monitored by 
instruments comparing the monthly average interest rate 

for RON-denominated investments with the 
In the management of liquidities, the objectives monthly inflation rate. In this period, the 
aimed at reducing the liquidity risk, interest monthly average interest rate to RON-
rate risk and the currency risk. denominated monetary investments was of 

0.7%, by 0.14% over the monthly average 
By reducing the liquidity risk, the inflation rate which was of 0.6%.
management aims to create best conditions 
for the company to pay its obligations, The average rate of return obtained in 2010 at 
avoiding the mismatch between maturity of EUR-denominated investments was of 4.02% 
deposits and that of payments. against the average EURIBOR interest rate of 
Throughout 2010, SIF Banat-Crişana held 1.33%. The national currency dropped against 
monetary investments diversified in deposits, the EUR over the course of the year, so that as 
treasury bills on the primary and secondary of December 31, 2010 there were recorded 
markets, bonds issued by municipalities and positive net foreign exchange differences for 
banks. EUR-denominated monetary investments. 

Short term investments, not exceeding one 
year, were made in fixed income instruments 
issued by companies in Romania and the 
European Union.

The structure of the portfolio of fixed income instruments
as of December 31, 2010

RON 106,672,282* total monetary investments as of December 31, 2010
* the value does not include the interests calculated on daily-basis and uncollected until year-end

bank deposits in RON: RON 49.2 mn 

bank deposits in foreign currency: 
RON equiv 42 5.  mn

bonds: RON 0.1 mn

treasury certificates: RON 14.9 mn

45.7%

39.5%

13.8%

0.9%
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Risk management
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include mainly receivables from core activity. 
These are presented net of adjustments for 
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closely and constantly monitors the exposure 
to credit risk in order to reduce losses due to 
credit concentrations in a particular industry or 
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Liquidity risk
The Company thoroughly supervised the 
evolution of liquidity in order to be able to pay 
the obligations on the date they are due. The 
assets and liabilities were analyzed relative to 
the time remaining until contractual maturity.

Considering its scope of business, SIF Banat-Crișana is exposed to a large 
series of financial risks. Company's management strives to mitigate the 
potential adverse effects associated to risks on SIF Banat-Crișana's financial 
performance and reputation.

The portfolio of fixed income financial Interest rate risk reduction was monitored by 
instruments comparing the monthly average interest rate 

for RON-denominated investments with the 
In the management of liquidities, the objectives monthly inflation rate. In this period, the 
aimed at reducing the liquidity risk, interest monthly average interest rate to RON-
rate risk and the currency risk. denominated monetary investments was of 

0.7%, by 0.14% over the monthly average 
By reducing the liquidity risk, the inflation rate which was of 0.6%.
management aims to create best conditions 
for the company to pay its obligations, The average rate of return obtained in 2010 at 
avoiding the mismatch between maturity of EUR-denominated investments was of 4.02% 
deposits and that of payments. against the average EURIBOR interest rate of 
Throughout 2010, SIF Banat-Crişana held 1.33%. The national currency dropped against 
monetary investments diversified in deposits, the EUR over the course of the year, so that as 
treasury bills on the primary and secondary of December 31, 2010 there were recorded 
markets, bonds issued by municipalities and positive net foreign exchange differences for 
banks. EUR-denominated monetary investments. 

Short term investments, not exceeding one 
year, were made in fixed income instruments 
issued by companies in Romania and the 
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as of December 31, 2010
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Organizational development
cost of capital, insolvency and restructuring Human resources
and presentation of some models and 
proprietary analysis applications) as well as Labor relations
themes of general interest such as rebranding.

As at 31 December 2010, SIF Banat-Crișana 
Considering performance crucial to a had 78 employees, of which 67 people worked 
successful activity, SIF Banat-Crişana's at the headquarters and 11 at the branch 
management focuses on the annual employee offices.
performance evaluation. Thus, the evaluation 
of individual performance built on SMART The structure of the personnel by education 
goals was continued in 2010 (project initiated degree is the following: 59 employees are 
in 2008), the evaluation results being university graduates, 6 with secondary 
fundamental for the design of programs to education and 13 persons with general studies. 
motivate, stimulate and develop employees.Out of the employees with a bachelor degree: 

3 persons have a doctoral degree, 2 persons 
are MBA graduates and 7 persons have master 
degrees while 12 persons graduated a second Organization and functioning
faculty, especially Economics and Law studies.

Due to the changes in the organizational 
No labor union was created within the structure in 2010, SIF Banat-Crișana has 
Company, the employees being represented submitted for approval to CNVM, according to 
for the negotiation of the collective labor the regulations in force, the updated version of 
contract by the representatives elected the Internal Regulations of SIF Banat-Crișana. 
according to law. CNVM authorized  the internal regulations 

through the Endorsement no.13 from 
The employment relationships are regulated by 11.03.2010.
Individual Employment Contracts and 
Collective Labor Agreement. During 2010, the 
Collective Labor Agreement registered with 

Procedures and information flow DMSSF Arad under no. 98/22.07.2010 was in 
optimizationforce.

At the end of 2010, a number of 44 procedures There were no conflicting issues in 2010 
were effective, aiming to ensure compliance between the management and the employees. 
with the legal provisions, generate efficient SIF Banat-Crișana gives full consideration to 
information flows and manage the risks to diversity and encourages the social dialogue 
which the Company is exposed to.while constantly promoting a business-friendly 

and stimulating environment.
Throughout the year, the Board of Directors 
approved the review of six procedures, with the Human resources development and 
purpose to improve the operational flows performance management
regarding: (i) the registration and settlement of 
transactions with financial instruments; (ii) SIF Banat-Crişana is fully committed to staff 
strengthening efforts for collecting dividends development, providing ongoing trainings at 
from companies in the portfolio; (iii) database all levels. SIF Banat-Crişana's management 
maintenance; (iv) payroll activity; (v) acquisition believes that the investment in people is crucial 
of goods and services; (vi) participation and in ensuring the competitiveness and future of 
voting in the General Meetings of the Company. The experience gathered by 
Shareholders.Company's employees over time is enhanced 

by continuous training courses. In 2010, 75% 
In 2010, the Board of Directors approved three of the employees participated in various forms 
new procedures regarding: (i) trading, of training: courses, seminars and conferences 
registration and settlement of transactions with on topics of interest for the Company business, 
derivatives; (ii) enforcing the legal provisions namely: valuation, audit, capital markets, 
regarding the international sanctions on the diminish investors' risks, technical analysis, 
capital market by SIF Banat-Crișana; (iii) management of investment projects, foreign 
initiating legal actions.languages, legal regulations, etc. The in-house 

program of seminars held by lecturers 
recruited from the most experienced 
employees has continued in 2010 and has 
addressed specific issues for the analysts, e.g.: 

Research
In 2010, SIF Banat-Crișana focused on the the listed and liquid issuers and estimating the 
development of applications dedicated to the terminal value based on appropriate market 
analysis of external economic environment, the multiples (e.g. EV/EBITDA) and a Monte-Carlo 
selection, control and monitoring of type numerical simulation application.
investments, portfolio optimization and the 
evaluation of portfolio performance. Some of the results of the research activity 

conducted by SIF Banat-Crişana were 
The main research activities focused on: presented and published at different scientific 

• studying the trends and evolution of the events, conferences, symposiums, sessions of 
external economic environment, focusing on scientific papers, of which it is worth 
the global economic risk analysis; mentioning: the Conference “Financial 

• implementing a set of quick screening Reporting Valuation” organized in Cluj by 
indicators for a portfolio of foreign issuers and ANEVAR, “Arad Academic Days” 20th edition, 
a portfolio of liquid domestic companies; organized in Arad by “Vasile Goldiş” West 

• implementing in an automatic IT University of Arad and the  “Vasile Goldiș” 
application of indicators of comparison and University Foundation, the Conference 
investment selection for fixed income „Valuation for the Capital Market”, 8th edition, 
instruments such as bonds or coupon organized in Bucharest by the Academy of 
government securities; Economic Studies and ANEVAR.

• conducting industry analysis and issuer 
analysis (including foreign issuers) on areas of During 10-11 December 2010, SIF Banat-
interest for the Company; Crişana organized in Bucharest together with 

• preparing and distribution for internal use the Faculty of Finance, Insurance, Banks and 
of: Stock Exchanges within the Academy of 
 (i) daily newsletters regarding the most Economic Studies in Bucharest and the Faculty 
important events in the economic field, of Economics and Business Administration 
transactions, leading economic sectors (energy, within the West University of Timișoara, the 
real estate, automotive) financial crisis, financial 10th International Conference – “Financial and 
market etc.; Monetary Stability in the Emerging Countries”.

(ii) periodic reports summarizing 
information about the financial market: capital 
markets, macroeconomic developments. Some 
reports included also  specific topics of interest 
to the company (e.g. fundamental analysis of 
financial instruments).

• in-house seminar presentation of two 
proprietary models developed by the research 
team: a simplified model for investment and 
analysis completed with an automatic 
application for estimating the cost of capital for 
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which the Company is exposed to.while constantly promoting a business-friendly 

and stimulating environment.
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regarding: (i) the registration and settlement of 
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strengthening efforts for collecting dividends development, providing ongoing trainings at 
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maintenance; (iv) payroll activity; (v) acquisition believes that the investment in people is crucial 
of goods and services; (vi) participation and in ensuring the competitiveness and future of 
voting in the General Meetings of the Company. The experience gathered by 
Shareholders.Company's employees over time is enhanced 

by continuous training courses. In 2010, 75% 
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recruited from the most experienced 
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• implementing a set of quick screening Reporting Valuation” organized in Cluj by 
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proprietary models developed by the research 
team: a simplified model for investment and 
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Internal control

Litigations

The activity of the Internal Control Office was securities, computation of net asset value, 
carried out in accordance with the provisions compliance of asset portfolio with the holding 
of the Inspection and Control Plan for 2010, as limits stipulated by law, meeting legal reporting 
approved by SIF Banat-Crișana's Board of requirements, calculation and payment to 
Directors in the meeting of January 22, 2010, in CNVM of 0.1% of total net asset, prevention of 
accordance with the provisions of CNVM money laundering and financing terrorism 
Regulation no. 15/2004, the work procedures through the capital market, compliance with 
and the internal regulations. the legal provisions regarding the persons with 

access to privileged information.
The areas concerned were: control over the 
compliance with the regulations in force The control reports submitted to the Board of 
applicable to the capital market and/or the Directors reveal that the activities subject to 
internal procedures; providing information to control comply with the law in force, regulation 
the Company and its staff regarding the legal and internal procedures. In some cases, 
status of the capital market; endorsement of proposals and recommendations for the 
the documents submitted by SIF Banat-Crișana improvement of the activity and work 
to CNVM in order to obtain the authorizations procedures were submitted.
stipulated by CNVM regulations; endorsement 
of the reports submitted to the capital market In accordance with CNVM Control Plan for 
and CNVM; endorsement of the informative 2010, a control team from CNVM conducted a 
and advertising materials of the Company; background check at SIF Banat-Crișana from 8 
other activities regarding Company's and its to 16 November 2010. The control topics 
employees' compliance with the current comprised eight chapters that covered the 
legislation applicable to the capital market and main activities performed by SIF Banat-Crișana. 
the internal regulations.

The Company provided the necessary 
In 2010, according to the plan approved, the documents and explanations to the control 
representative of the Internal Control Office team. Based on the findings of the control 
has verified compliance with the work team, measures will be taken to improve the 
procedures and the regulations in force activity.
applicable to the capital market encompassing 
the following activities: trading with portfolio 

As of December 31, 2010, the Company was Meeting of Shareholders of portfolio 
involved in 157 litigations in Court trial. The companies or the recovery of overdue 
Company is the claimant in 96 litigations and dividends from operating companies or 
the defendant in 56 trials, and in 5 litigations companies undergoing winding-up 
the Company is the intervening party. proceedings.

The litigations where the Company is the Further details regarding the litigations in 
claimant or the intervening party have as which the Company is involved are presented 
object the annulment/declaration of absolute in Note 20 – Contingent liabilities of the 
nullity of certain decisions of the General Financial Statements.

Internal audit (continued)

Directors, comprising the results of the audit In the internal auditor's opinion, the audited 
conducted, the conclusions, recommendations, activities and operations performed by 
proposals and opinions. SIF Banat-Crișana in 2010 are in compliance 

with the policies, programs and management 
No significant issues were identified to be of the Company in accordance with the legal 
mediated by the Board of Directors. provisions and internal regulations.

Information technology

Internal audit

In 2010, the IT activities provided further of:  the system, VPN network, SIF Banat-
support for improving operational efficiency, Crişana website and monitoring the server 
sustaining management processes. journals. It is accomplished by configuring the 

e-mail servers, the antivirus, the access to the 
IT system development and integration Internet, intranet and performing regular 
The IT division ensured the technical support backups.
for the proper conducting of the general 
meeting of shareholders, by developing and The activity implies the allocation of a person 
improving the applications for keeping the (system engineer) for the physical maintenance 
records of shareholders and the electronic of the 85 network computers (including the 
voting system. branch offices), of the operating systems and 

of the security and back-up solutions. The 
A new set of applications and data bases to server journals are monitored on a daily basis 
serve portfolio management and the trading for viruses, also the activity and traffic on the 
activity on the international markets was Internet and  Intranet, the potential intrusion 
developed. attempts, spam communication and surveys 

concerning the network traffic are conducted if 
As of year-end 2010, the reporting applications there is a suspicious traffic volume.
required by NBR, CNVM, the net asset 
calculation, record-keeping accounting of the Company's image is also reflected through its 
transactions were under revision and updating. website: www.sif1.ro. The daily maintenance 
New instruments for the Research Department and upgrade of the website is an ongoing 
are in development stages. activity of the IT Division together with the 

Communication and Investor Relations Office.
System maintenance and management
System maintenance and management are 
ongoing activities and imply the maintenance 

The objectives of the Internal audit are to Company audited in 2010 were: 
support the Company in identifying and • the management of the portfolio 
assessing key risks, with the purpose of consisting of financial assets, substantiation of 
conducting an independent evaluation of the investment/divestment decisions in these 
risk management, control and management instruments and compliance with the approved 
processes; to assist the Company in competence limits;
maintaining an efficient and effective control • trading with securities, compliance with 
system. the short-term investment policy and the 

approved work procedures;
In SIF Banat-Crișana the internal audit is • human resources management, 
conducted as follows: evaluation of the observing the provisions in the Collective 
management and internal control systems Labor Agreement, internal regulation and 
–system audit; evaluation of the results approved procedures;
regarding the objectives set and examination • compliance with the legislation and 
the effective impact – performance audit; procedures regarding the calculation and 
ensuring the compliance of procedures and reporting of SIF Banat-Crișana net asset;
operations with the legal requirements – • the general patrimony inventory 
compliance audit. performed at the end of 2010;

• compliance with the work procedures 
The internal audit activity was performed related to economic and administrative 
according to 2010 audit plan, as approved by activities;
the Board of Directors. The audit plan was • compliance with the procedures 
prepared in accordance with Company's regarding the drawing-up, transmission to 
objectives and has targeted to cover all CNVM/BSE and release of mandatory reports;
activities and transactions performed by the • monitoring and collecting dividends from 
Company over the past two years, ensuring the companies in the portfolio.
the continuity of audit.

The internal auditor prepared and submitted 
The main activities and operations of the ten audit reports to SIF Banat-Crișana Board of 

22 Information technology / Internal audit Internal audit / Internal control / Litigations 23 

SIF Banat-Crișana Annual report 2010 SIF Banat-Crișana Annual report 2010



Internal control

Litigations
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Internal audit (continued)
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Information technology

Internal audit
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2011 outlook
The management of the financial assets utilities, pharmaceuticals, focusing on 
portfolio of SIF Banat-Crişana aims to provide issuers which offer a mix of growth and 
investors a rate of return higher than the one income; 
they could have obtained from an individual • developing an investment strategy on the 
investment. external capital markets to counterbalance 
The Company's growth strategy is based on the reduced liquidity on the Romanian 
identifying business opportunities that may capital market and the limited possibilities 
offer a strategic advantage in the competitive for diversifying SIF Banat-Crișana's portfolio 
environment in which the Company operates. within the country; 

• building a diversified and flexible 
portfolio focusing primarily on stocks of Forecast on the evolution of 
several European companies whose economic environment 
performance to be superior to the average 
return of the main European stock SIF Banat-Crișana's activity program for 2011 
exchange indices; took into consideration the following estimates 
• re-calibrating and optimizing the current on the evolution of the domestic economic 
portfolio, aiming to diminish the exposure environment (according to the Autumn 
to the financial sector and industries such Prognosis 2010 of CNP):
as paper, furniture and plastics; 
• supporting the completion of the • expected growth in GDP of 1.5% in 
investment in Calipso SA Oradea, the hotel 2011; the official estimates for growth in the 
Doubletree by Hilton; main sectors are of: 2.7% in industry; 1% in 
• sizing down the issuers in the portfolio by agriculture; 1.6% in construction; 0.9% in 
10% in 2011, especially the holdings in services; 
unlisted companies; • rise in consumption prices (inflation) 
• identifying restructuring opportunities, estimated to 3.2% at 2011 year-end, exceeding 
through split or merger, of the companies the inflation target set by NBR to 3%, but 
where SIF Banat-Crișana is majority below NBR effective forecast, respectively 
shareholder; 3.6%. The average annual rate of inflation is 
• improving the structure of the fixed forecast to 5.3%; 
income financial instruments to obtain • trade balance (export FOB – import CIF) 
superior returns; is expected to be of EUR -8.61bn in 2011, 
• permanent monitoring of the risks that slight increase against 2010 ( EUR -8.4 bn); 
the investments may be exposed to and • current account deficit is estimated to 
taking measures for the management and EUR – 7.125 bn, representing about -5.5% of 
diminishing of risks; GDP; 
• developing methods, techniques and • unemployment rate at year-end 2011 
tools for the analysis and assessment of expected to 7.2%. 
investments, focusing on: conducting and 
implementing analysis on the internal and 
external environment, conducting sector 

Investment objectives analysis associated to the evolution of the 
economic environment, observing in real 

The investment objectives for 2011 aim to time the performance of the issuers and 
increase the value and the liquidity of the portfolios selected. 
portfolio managed and diminish the risk 
associated to the portfolio held.

Promoting SIF Banat-Crişana's Key priorities for 2011:
image• income from transactions on the 

capital market not less than 
RON 56.8 mn; • developing SIF Banat-Crișana's website 
• income from dividends, expected to  according to the main principles of 
RON 9.5 mn; information ergonomics and architecture, 
• investments (stock acquisitions) not less to facilitate communication and interaction 
than  RON 53.5 mn lei; with investors and other categories of 

public (analysts, media etc); 
Action lines: • diversifying the communication channels 

• investments in new projects, with with investors, inclusively through 
strategic partners (in renewable energy, newsletters on SIF Banat-Crișana activity; 
agriculture, etc) and opportunities offered • corporate identity management, by 
by the privatizations of the Romanian state; reviewing SIF Banat-Crișana's corporate 
• strengthening the positions held in identity manual, preparing and facilitating 
sectors such as: energetics, raw materials, the rebranding process envisaged; 
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SIF1 shares

SIF1 shares evolution

- SIF1  
 volume-

SIF1 shares key figures

The shares issued by SIF Banat-Crișana  have in H2 2010 with 6,646,000 shares amounting 
been traded on the First Tier of the Bucharest to RON 6,660,890.
Stock Exchange since November 1, 1999 under 
ticker SIF1. The DEAL transactions made in 2010 totaled 

9,220,500 shares, amounting to RON 
As of December 30, 2010, the Company had 9,320,700.
548,849,268 outstanding shares from the total 
number of shares issued. SIF1 market cap was of RON 556.53 mn as of 

December 31, 2010 (computed at the closing 
The maximum volume of 5,394,500 shares price).
traded on May 25, 2010 is due to the sharp 
price decline in that period. During 2010 fiscal year, SIF Banat-Crişana  did 

not purchase and did not hold at any time its 
SIF1 price liquidity was relatively high in 2010, own shares.
a total of 224,917,500 shares being traded, 
representing 40.97% of the total shares issued.

On the “DEAL” market, two transactions were 
made in H1 2010 with 2,574,500 shares 
amounting to RON 2,659,810, two transactions 

January 4 - December 30, 2010
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    low [RON] 2.690 0.427 0.365 0.895 

    high [RON] 4.380 3.490 1.250 1.780 

    closing price, year end [RON]  3.550 0.545 1.130 1.014 

PER 15.85 3.13 5.52 8.83 

Price/Net Asset Value per share [%] 96 29.58 40.23 40.90 

Dividend [RON] 0.0700 0.0300 0.0500 0.103 

Dividend yield* [%] 1.97 5.5 4.42 10.15 

Market capitalization** [RON mn]  1.948,41 304.61 620.19 556.53 

 

SIF1 shares2  4

* computed based on the average closing price year end and using the unit dividend to be distributed in the respective year 
** computed using the average price from the last day of transaction in the respective year

5.39 mn

2.99 mn
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List of terms
AGM Public company
Annual General Meeting A joint stock company set up by public 

subscription or a company that has issued 
BET (Bucharest Exchange Trading) securities through an initial public offering 
is the reference index of BSE market. It is a free (IPO)
float weighted capitalization index of the most 
liquid ten companies listed on the regulated Record date
market. is the date set by the AGM to identify the 

shareholders eligible to receive dividends or 
BET-C (Bucharest Exchange Trading – other rights and who will be affected by the 
composite index) resolutions of the AGM. The record date is 
is the composite index of BSE market. It is a subsequent to the AGM
market capitalization weighted index. BET-C 
reflects the price movements of all the Reference date
companies on the BSE regulated market, 1st is the date set by the Board of Directors to 
and 2nd Tiers, excepting SIFs. identify the shareholders who are entitled to 

attend and vote at the AGM. The reference 
BET-FI (Bucharest Exchange Trading date is announced in the Notice of AGM
–Investment Funds)
reflects the price movements of the investment Registrar
funds (SIFs) and Fondul Proprietatea traded on is a joint stock company, authorized by CNVM, 
the BSE regulated market. BET-FI is a free float which ensures clearing and settlement of the 
weighted capitalization index. transactions concluded on BSE market and is 

responsible for keeping records of the issuer's 
BoD registries.
Board of Directors

ROA
Closed-end company return on assets
A company that does not meet the conditions 
to qualify as public company ROE

return on equity
Issuer
Legal entity that is authorized to issue its own RON
securities Romanian new leu, the currency of Romania

CNVM ROTX (Romanian Traded Index)
Comisia Națională a Valorilor Mobiliare is a free float weighted capitalization index and 

reflects in real time the movements of “blue 
NBR chip” companies traded on the BSE market. It is 
National Bank of Romania calculated in RON, EUR and USD and 

disseminated in real-time by the Wiener Borse
BSE
Bucharest Stock Exchange

CNVM
Romanian National Securities Commission

Depository
is a bank, authorized by CNVM, which holds 
funds or securities deposited by other entities 
under a specific agreement

IPO
initial public offer

NAV
net asset value

List of terms 79 

• drawing up, presenting and publishing • developing the information infrastructure 
several scientific papers at different and maintaining the quality and security 
scientific events, conferences, symposiums, standards of the IT support at a high level, 
magazines, scientific sessions. i.e. developing and integrating applications 

correlated with the development of 
company's activities, keeping the security of 
the information system and of VPN system Organizational development
with the branch offices at a high level, 
obtaining a SMSI certification in 

• ensuring the ongoing development of compliance with the requirements of 
employees' competencies and standard SR EN ISO 27001:2005. 
proficiencies, facilitating participation in 
external and in-house training courses 
within a well structured program; 
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FREE TRANSLATION

 
The translation of the financial statements is provided as a free translation from 

Romanian which is the official and binding version. 

 

 

 

The financial statements in this report have been renumbered, as this document has a different 

layout than the original version of the Financial Statements, posted on Company’s website, 

www.sif1.ro. The page numbers referred to in the Auditor’s Report and Notes to the Financial 

Statements are those in the original version, which is the official and binding version. 



 

1 
TRANSLATOR’S EXPLANATORY NOTE: The above translation of the auditors’ report is provided as a free translation from 

Romanian which is the official and binding version. 

 

Independent Auditors’ Report 

(free translation
1
) 

 

 

To the shareholders, 

SIF Banat-Crisana S.A. 

 

Report on the Individual Financial Statements 

1 We have audited the accompanying individual financial statements of SIF Banat-Crisana S.A. (the “Company”), 

which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2010, the income statement, the statement of changes in 

equity and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies 

and other explanatory notes set out on pages 1 to 55. The individual financial statements mentioned above 

present the following: 

 

 Net assets/Total equity:               538,546,764 lei 

 Result of the period, profit:                62,996,316 lei 

 

Management’s Responsibility for the Individual Financial Statements 

2 Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these individual financial statements in 

accordance with the Order of the President of the National Securities Commission no. 75/2005 with 

subsequent amendments and as described in the accounting policies presented in the notes to the individual 

financial statements and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 

preparation of individual financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error. 

 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

3 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these individual financial statements based on our audit. We 

conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing as adopted by the Romanian Chamber of 

Financial Auditors. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the individual financial statements are free from material 

misstatement. 

 

4 An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 

individual financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the individual financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 

preparation and fair presentation of the individual financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 

are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 

the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 

presentation of the individual financial statements. 

 

5 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

audit opinion. 

Opinion  

6 In our opinion, the individual financial statements for the year-ended 31 December 2010 have been prepared, 

in all material aspects, in accordance with the Order of the President of the National Securities Commission no. 

75/2005 with subsequent amendments and as described in the accounting policies presented in the notes to 

the individual financial statements.  

Emphasis of matter  

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to the following aspects: 



 

1 
TRANSLATOR’S EXPLANATORY NOTE: The above translation of the auditors’ report is provided as a free translation from 

Romanian which is the official and binding version. 

 

7 As disclosed in note 21 to the individual financial statements, the Company consistently opted for both the 

year ended on 31 December 2010 and the previous year, for the inclusion in reserve accounts of the 

adjustments for impairment of non-current financial assets in accordance with the Order of the National 

Securities Commission no. 11/2009. 

8 As disclosed in note 6.3.g to the individual financial statements, for the purpose of non-current financial assets 

impairment adjustments assessment, the Company consistently opted for both the year ended on 31 

December 2010 and the previous year, to use the net assets calculation model provided by Regulation no. 

15/2004 issued by the National Securities Commission. 

Other aspects 

9 This report is made solely to the Company's shareholders. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we 

might state to the Company's shareholders those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's 

report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume 

responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company's shareholders as a body, for our audit 

work, for the report on the individual financial statements and the report on conformity, or for the opinion we 

have formed. 

10 The accompanying individual financial statements are not intended to present the financial position and results 

of operations, cash flows and a complete set of notes to the individual financial statements of the Company in 

accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other 

than Romania. Accordingly, the accompanying individual financial statements are not designed for those who 

are not informed about Romanian legal and statutory requirements including the Order of the President of the 

National Securities Commission no. 75/2005 with subsequent amendments. 

11 As disclosed in note 6.1 to the individual financial statements, according to the Decision no. 2492/3 December 

2007 issued by the National Securities Commission, the Company should prepare a set of annual consolidated 

financial statements in accordance with the International Financial reporting Standards as adopted by the 

European Union, for the year ended on 31 December 2010. 

12 As disclosed in note 6.1 to the individual financial statements, in accordance with the Order no. 11/3.02.2011 of 

the National Securities Commission for the approval of Instruction no. 3/2011, published in the Official Gazette 

no. 145 from 28 February 2011, regarding the application of International Financial Reporting Standards by 

entities authorized, regulated and supervised by the National Securities Commission, the Company has the 

obligation to prepare annual financial statements, for informative purposes, in accordance with the 

International Financial Reporting Standards for the years ended 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2011. 

 

Report on conformity of the Administrator’s Report with the Individual Financial Statements  

In accordance with the Order of the National Securities Commission no. 75/2005, article no. 9.1, point 2) we have 

read the Administrator’s Report accompanying the individual financial statements and presented from page 1 to 30. 

The Administrators’ Report is not a part of the individual financial statements. In the Administrator’s Report we have 

not identified any financial information which is not consistent, in all material respects, with the information 

presented in the accompanying individual financial statements.  

 

For and in the name of KPMG Audit SRL: 

 

   

Toader Serban-Cristian 

Senior Partner 

 KPMG Audit SRL 

 

registered with the Chamber of Financial  

Auditors of Romania under no 1502/2003 

  

registered with the Chamber of Financial 

Auditors of Romania under no 9/2001 

 

Bucharest, Romania 

15 March 2011  

Refer to the original signed Romanian version 
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    Arad County   Ownership type 34   

SIF Banat-Crişana    Local private capital 

Arad, 35A Calea Victoriei    CAEN Class denomination 

Telephone 0257/304426, Fax 0257/270073 
 

 
Other types of financial service 

activities 

Trade Registry number:   CAEN group code 6499 

J02/1898/1992 
 

 
Tax code/Unique Registration 

Code 2761040 

         

 
Line 

No. 

 

Note 

01 January  

2010 

 31  December  

2010 

A. NON-CURRENT ASSETS      

I.  INTANGIBLE ASSETS      

1. Set up expenses  1  -  - 

2. Development costs  2  -  - 

3. Concessions, patents, licenses, other intangible assets  3  21,131  49,263 

4. Goodwill  4  -  - 

5. Prepayments and intangible assets in progress  5  -  - 

TOTAL: (line 01 to 05) 6 1a 21,131  49,263 

II. TANGIBLE ASSETS      

1. Land and buildings  7  5,464,454  5,376,484 

2. Technical installations and machinery  8  478,796  350,959 

3. Other plants, equipment and furniture  9  92,818  94,381 

4. Prepayments and tangible assets in progress  10  -  79,901 

TOTAL: (line 07 to 10) 11 1b 6,036,068  5,895,725 

III. FINANCIAL ASSETS      

1. Shares held in subsidiaries 12  -  - 

2. Loan granted to subsidiaries 13  -  - 

3. Investments in associates  14  -  - 

4. Loans to associates  15  -  - 

5. Securities and other financial instruments held as non cur-

rent financial assets  16 

 

11 487,806,342  538,642,535 

6. Other receivables  17  183,847  - 

TOTAL: (line 12 to 17) 18 1c 487,990,189  538,642,535 

TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS (lines 06+11+18) 19  494,047,388  544,587,523 

B.  CURRENT ASSETS      

I. INVENTORIES      

1. Consumables  20  3,237                3,237 

2. Services in progress  21  -  - 

3. Prepayments for purchase of inventory   22  -  - 

TOTAL: (line 20 to 22) 23  

                  

3,237  

                    

3,237 
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Line 

No. 
Note 

01 January  

2010 

 31  December  

2010 

II. RECEIVABLES      

1. Trade receivables  24  127,606,297  92,885,553 

2. Amounts receivable from subsidiaries  25  -  - 

3. Amounts receivable from associates  26  -  - 

4. Other receivables  27  3,358,047  1,354,258 

5. Receivables regarding subscribed and not paid in 

share capital  28  -  - 

TOTAL: (line 24 to 28) 29 5 130,964,344  94,239,811 

III. CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS      

1. Shares held in subsidiaries  30  -  - 

2. Other current financial assets  31  3,743,173  16,394,070 

TOTAL: (line 30 to 31) 32  3,743,173  16,394,070 

IV. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  33 15 331,436  561,110 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS (lines 23+29+32+33) 34  135,042,190  111,198,228 

C. PREPAID EXPENSES  35  161,935  179,136 

D. CURRENT LIABILITIES      

1. Bonds issued  36  -  - 

2. Payables to credit institutions  37  -  - 

3. Advances cashed for orders  38  -  - 

4. Trade payables  39  58,735  160,698 

5. Trade bills payable  40  -  - 

6. Amounts payable to subsidiaries  41  -  - 

7. Amounts payable to associates  42  -  - 

8. Other liabilities, including tax liabilities  43  67,518,443         62,851,657 

TOTAL: (line 36 to 43) 44 5 67,577,178  63,012,355 

E. NET CURRENT ASSETS, LESS NET CURRENT  

LIABILITIES (line 34+35-44-60.2) 45  67,302,239  48,040,301 

F. TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES  

(line 19+45-60.1) 46  561,349,564  592,627,775 

G. NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES      

1. Bonds issued  47  -  - 

2. Payables to credit institutions 48  -  - 

3. Prepayments cashed for orders 49  -  - 

4. Trade payables 50  -  - 

5. Trade bills payable 51  -  - 

6. Amounts payable to subsidiaries 52  -  - 

7. Amounts payable to associates 53  -  - 

8. Other liabilities, including tax liabilities 54 5 5,078,110  - 

TOTAL: (line 47 to 54) 55  5,078,110  - 
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These individual financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the Company’s 

Management on 7 March 2011 and modified on 15 March 2011 regarding the profit appropriation (Note 3). 

     

Ioan Cuzman   Ștefan Doba 

Chairman & CEO     Economic Director 

 

 

 
Line 

no. 
Note 

01 January  

2010 

 31 December  

2010 

 

H. PROVISIONS      

1. Provisions for pensions and other tax obligations  56  -  - 

2. Provisions for taxes  

3. Other provisions  

57 

58  

51,826,188 

4,242,000  

51,634,011 

2,447,000 

TOTAL PROVISIONS: (line 56+57+58) 

     

59   2    56,068,188  54,081,011 

1. Investment subsidies  60.1  63  49 

2. Deferred income  60.2 10e 324,708  324,708 

J. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES      

I. SHARE CAPITAL (line 62 to 63), out of which: 61 7 54,884,927  54,884,927 

- Subscribed and not paid in share capital  62  -  - 

- Subscribed and paid-in share capital 63  54,884,927  54,884,927 

II. SHARE PREMIUM   64  -  - 

III. REVALUATION RESERVES       

CREDIT BALANCE 65 16 5,236,283  5,153,919 

DEBIT BALANCE 66  -  - 

IV. RESERVES 

(line 68-69+70+71+72+73+74-75) 67 

 

16 431,280,782  518,895,988 

1. Legal reserve 68  10,976,985  10,976,985 

2. Reserves for allowances for impairment of financial 

assets (debit balance) 69  112,544,556  108,844,049 

3. Statutory or contractual reserves 70  -  - 

4. Reserves from financial assets received at no cost 71  127,983,222  127,056,671 

5. Fair value reserves 72  -  - 

6. Reserves representing realized revaluation surplus 73  331,872  429,925 

7. Other reserves 74  404,533,259  489,276,456 

8. Own shares 75  -  - 

Credit balance 76  -  - 

Debit balance 77 16 103,384,386  103,384,386 

VI. RESULT FOR THE YEAR       

Credit balance 78 3 112,185,660  62,996,316 

Debit balance 79  -  - 

Profit appropriation (acct. 129) 80 3 -  - 

TOTAL EQUITY (line 61+64+65-66+67+76-77+78-

79-80) 81  500,203,266  538,546,764 
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Line 

no. 
Note 

Year ended  

31 December 2009 

Year ended 

      31 December 2010 

     

A. TOTAL OPERATING INCOME  

(line 02 to 11) 01 

 

4,13 

 

 180,532,088 

 

113,511,635 

1. Income from non-current financial assets  02  90,414,635 51,891,144 

2. Income from current financial assets  03  - - 

3. Income from non-current receivables  04  - - 

4. Income from disposal of financial assets  05            62,056,894 33,441,654 

5. Income from services provided  06  - - 

6. Income from reversal of provisions, re-

activated receivables and sundry debtors  07 

  

15,795,863 

 

17,041,212 

7. Foreign exchange gains  08  1,188,935 2,786,710 

8. Interest income  09  9,966,533 7,693,136 

9. Income from capitalized production  10  - - 

10. Other operating income:  11  1,109,228 657,779 

     

B. TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES ** (line 

13 to 20) 12 

 

4,14 

 

         62,094,307 

 

48,310,204 

11. Losses on receivables from associates  

13 

  

- 

 

- 

12. Expenses with the disposal of financial 

assets  14 

 

         43,598,125 25,665,672 

13. Foreign exchange loss  15  1,204,071 2,008,433 

14. Interest expense  16  - - 

15. Fees and commissions expense 17  1,888,724 2,337,960 

16. Expenses with bank services and similar 

charges  18 

 

                 33,436 44,362 

17. Expenses with depreciation, amortiza-

tion, provisions, losses from receivables and 

sundry debtors  19 

 

 

5,986,417 

 

3,147,922 

18. Other operating expenses, out of which: 

20 

  

9,383,534 

 

15,105,855 

a. Materials  21  195,836 264,807 

b. Energy and water  22  126,485 177,944 

c. Personnel (line 24+25), out of which: 23  7,218,312 12,420,824 

c1. Salaries  24  5,600,761 10,337,777 

c2. Social security  

25 

  

1,617,551 

 

2,083,047 

d. Third party services  26  1,703,112 2,069,068 

e. Expenses with other duties, taxes and 

similar payments  27 

  

139,789 

 

173,212 

C. OPERATING RESULT: 

 - Profit (line 01 -12) 

- Loss (line 12-01) 

28 

29 

  

 

118,437,781 

- 

 

 

65,201,431 

- 

D. INCOME FROM EXTRAORDINARY AC-

TIVITY  30 

  

- 

 

- 

E. EXPENSES FROM EXTRAORDINARY 

ACTIVITY  31 

  

- 

 

- 

F. RESULT OF THE EXTRAORDINARY  32                        -  
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Line 

no. 
Note 

Year ended  

31 December 2009 

Year ended 

      31 December 2010 

     

ACTIVITY 

- Profit (line 30 -31) 

- Loss (line 31 -30) 

33  

- 

19. TOTAL INCOME (line 01+30) 34 

 

180,532,088 

 

113,511,635 

20. TOTAL EXPENSES (line 12+31) 35 

 

62,094,307 

 

48,310,204 

 

G. GROSS PROFIT / LOSS 

- Profit (line 34-35) 

- Loss (line 35-34) 

 

 

36 

37 

 

118,437,781 65,201,431 

21. INCOME TAX EXPENSE     

- Income tax expense  38 

 

6,252,121 

 

2,205,115 

22. Other tax expenses not included in the 

captions above  39 

 

- 

 

- 

H. RESULT FOR THE YEAR 

- Profit (line 36-38+39) 

- Loss (line 37+38-39)/(line 38-39-36) 

 

 

40 

41 

 

- 

112,185,660 

 

- 

 62,996,316 

      

*Operating income is detailed in Note 13 The structure of gross income (page 45). 

**Expenses from current activity are detailed in Note 14 Structure of expenses (page 46). 

 

These individual financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the Company’s 

Management on 7 March 2011 and modified on 15 March 2011 regarding the profit appropriation 

(Note 3). 

 

 

     

Ioan Cuzman   Ștefan Doba 

Chairman & CEO     Economic Director 
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  Line  

Year ended on 

31 December    

 Year ended on 

31 December   

 Indicator  no Note 2009  2010 

A OPERATING ACTIVITIES      

+ Cash receipts from clients 01                 717,944   

               

225,996  

- Payments to suppliers and employees 02        (11,064,937)  

       

(16,880,668) 

- Interest paid 03                          -                             -    

- Income tax paid 04  (6,143,725)  (2,586,112) 

 Net cash flows from operating activities 05  

       

(16,490,718)  

      

(19,240,784) 

B INVESTING ACTIVITIES      

- Purchases of financial assets 06  
          

(25,002,698)  
          

(48,051,731) 

- Purchases of tangible assets 07                (40,922)                (360,937) 

+ Proceeds from sale of financial assets 
 

08  
          

 69,628,613   
          

 43,079,571  

+ Proceeds from sale of tangible assets 09  
                   

648,600   
                   

103,200  

+ Interest received 10              8,905,664               8,300,943  

+ Dividends received 11            72,756,098             13,131,098  

- Other payments from investment activity 12  (1,195,777)                         (2,088,118) 

+ Other proceeds from investment activity 13         1,147,232              2,681,770 

 Net cash flows used in investing activities 14  
          

126,846,810          16,875,796  

C FINANCING ACTIVITIES      

+ Proceeds from the issue of shares 15                          -                             -    

+ Proceeds from long term borrowings 16                          -                             -    

- Dividends paid 17          (12,462,674)         (24,648,800) 

 Net cash flows used in financing activity 18  

        

(12,462,674)        (24,648,800) 

 Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 19          97,893,418        (27,013,788) 

 

Cash and cash equivalents as at  the beginning 

of year 20 15 

          

21,455,224            119,348,642  

 Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of year 21 15 119,348,642  92,334,854 

 

These individual financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the Company’s 

Management on 7 March 2011 and modified on 15 March 2011 regarding the profit appropriation (Note 3). 

 

     

Ioan Cuzman   Ștefan Doba 

Chairman & CEO   Economic Director
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EQUITY ITEM 

  

Balance as of 

01 January 

2010 

INCREASES DECREASES 
Balance as at 

31 December  

2010 

 

Note 

Total, out of 

which: 

By trans-

fers: 

Total, out of 

which: 
By transfers: 

        

Share capital  54,884,927 - - -  54,884,927 

Share premium  - - - -  - 

Revaluation reserve  16 5,236,283 15,689 - (98,053) (98,053) 5,153,919 

Legal reserves 16 10,976,985 - - - - 10,976,985 

Reserves for allowances of impairment of financial 

assets  (Debit balance)  (112,544,556) (13,394,431) - 17,093,938 - (108,844,049) 

Statutory or contractual reserves  - - - - -  

Reserves representing realized revaluation surplus 16 331,872 98,053 98,053 - - 429,925 

Other reserves 16 532,516,481 85,134,161 84,743,197 (1,317,515) - 616,333,127 

Own shares  - - - - - - 

Retained earnings representing 

profit not appropriated or ac-

cumulated losses 

Credit balance 

 

Debit balance 

 -     112,185,660 112,185,660 (112,185,660) (84,743,197) - 

 

 

- - - - - 

 

- 

Retained earnings from first 

time adoption of IAS, except for 

IAS 29 

Credit balance 

 

Debit balance 

16 5,437,415 - - - - 5,437,415 

 - - - - -  

 - - - - - - 

 - - - - -  

Retained earnings from correc-

tions of errors 

Credit balance 

 

Debit balance 

 - - - - - - 

 - - - - -  

 - - - - - - 

Accumulated losses resulted 

from applying the accounting 

regulations in line with  E.E.C. 

Directive IV. 

 

Credit balance 

 

Debit balance 

 - - - - - - 

 - - - - -  

 

16 (108,821,801) - - - - (108,821,801) 
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EQUITY ITEM (continued) 

 
 

Balance as of 

01 January 

2010 

INCREASES DECREASES  

Balance as 

at 31   

December  

2010 

 

Note 

Total, out of 

which: 
By transfer: 

Total, out of 

which: 

 

By transfer: 

 

 

 
      

Result for the year 

 

 

 

Profit appropriation 

 

Credit balance 

 

Debit balance 

 

 

 

3 

 

 

 

112,185,660 62,996,316 - (112,185,660) (112,185,660) 62,996,316 - 

3 - - - - - -  

       

Total equity  500,203,266 247,036,448 197,026,910 (208,692,950) (197,026,910) 538,546,764 
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EQUITY ITEM  

  

Balance as of 

01 January 

2009 

INCREASES  REDUCTIONS   

Balance as at 

31 December  

2009 

 

Note 

Total, out of 

which: 

By trans-

fer 

Total, out of 

which: 
By transfer 

        

Share capital  54,884,927 -  - - 54,884,927 

Share premium  - -  - - - 

Revaluation reserve  16 5,260,458 81,523  (105,698) (75,395) 5,236,283 

Legal reserve 

Reserves for recognition of impairment allowances 

on financial assets  

Statutory or contractual reserves 16 

10,976,985 

 

(110,705,896) 

- 

- 

 

(33,797,586) 

- 

- 

 

- 

- 

- 

 

31,958,926 

- - 

10,976,985 

 

(112,544,556) 

- 

Reserves representing realized revaluation surplus  

 

16 

 

256,477 

 

           75,395 

 

75,395 

 

- - 

 

          331,872 

Other reserves  16 460,905,938 80,374,114 78,971,944 (8,763,571) - 532,516,481 

Own shares  - -  -  - 

Retained earnings represent-

ing profit not appropriated or 

accumulated losses 

Balance C 

 

Balance D 

 - -  - - - 

       

Retained earnings resulted 

from first  adoption of IAS, 

except for IAS 29 

Balance C 

 

Balance D 

 5,437,415 -  - - 5,437,415 

 - -  - - - 

       

 - -  - - - 

Retained earnings resulted 

from corrections of errors 

Balance C 

 

Balance D 

 - -  - - - 

       

 - -  -  - 

 

 

Accumulated losses resulted 

from applying the accounting 

regulations compliant with  

E.E.C. Directive IV. 

Balance C 

 

Balance D 

 - -  - - - 

 - - - -   

16 (108,821,801) - - -  (108,821,801) 
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EQUITY ITEM (continued) 

 
 

Balance as of 1 

January 2009 

INCREASES REDUCTIONS  

Balance as at 

31 December  

2009 

 

Note 
Total, out of 

which: 

By  trans-

fer 

Total, out of 

which: 
By transfer 

 

 

 
      

Result for the year 

 

 

  

Profit appropriation 

Balance C 

 

Debit balance 

 

 

 

3 

 

 

 

95,437,422 112,185,660 - (95,437,422) (78,971,944) 112,185,660  

3 - - - - - -  

       

Total Equity  413,631,925 158,919,106 79,047,339 (72,347,765) (79,047,339) 500,203,266 

 

 

 

These individual financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the Company’s Management on 7 March 2011 and modified on 

15 March 2011 regarding the profit appropriation (Note 3). 

 

 

 

 

         

Ioan Cuzman      Ștefan Doba 

Chairman & CEO        Economic Director 
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1. NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

 

a) Intangible assets 

 

 

 

Set-up and 

develop-

ment ex-

penses 

 

Conces-

sions, pa-

tents and 

licenses 

 

Prepayments and 

 intangible assets 

in progress 

 
Total intangible 

assets 

Cost        

Balance as at  

1 January 2010 72,327  374,038  -  446,365 

Acquisitions -  45,013  1,684  46,697 

Disposals 72,136  13,508   1,684  87,328  

Balance as at 31 De-

cember 2010 191  405,543  -  405,734 

Cumulated amortiza-

tion        

Balance as at  

1 January 2010 72,327  352,907  -  425,234 

Amortization charge -  16,881  -  16,881 

Cumulated amortiza-

tion of disposals  172,136  13,508    -  85,644  

Balance as at  

31 December 2010 191  356,280  -  356,471 

        

        

Carrying amount as 

at 1 January 2010 -  21,131  -  21,131 

Carrying amount as 

at 31 December 2010 -  49,263  -  49,263 
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b)   Tangible assets 

 

          

 

Land and 

buildings 
 

Technical 

installa-

tions and 

machinery 

 

Other 

plants, 

equipment 

and furni-

ture 

 

Prepay-

ments and 

tangible 

assets in 

progress 

 

Total  

tangible  

assets 

Cost          

Balance as at  

1 January 2010     7,824,193   2,283,679   512,422  -   10,620,159  

Acquisitions 194,069  143,585   21,549   300,651  659,854  

Disposals 138,452  279,373   15,414   226,750  659,989  

Balance as at  

31 December 2010 7,879,810   2,147,891       518,557    73,901    10,620,159  

 

Cumulated depreci-

ation          

Balance as at  

1 January 2010 2,359,739   1,804,884   419,604   -  4,584,226  

Depreciation charge 164,357   224,165   19,547   -  408,069  

Cumulated deprecia-

tion of disposals 20,770  232,116          14,975   -  267,861  

Balance as at 31 

December 2010 2,503,326  1,796,932   424,176   -   4,724,434  

Carrying amount as 

at 1 January 2010 5,464,454    478,796   92,818   -  6,036,068  

Carrying amount as 

at 31 December 

2010 5,376,484   350,959   94,381   73,901   5,895,725  

 

Based on the internal Decision no. 186/23.12.2009, the Company revalued the "Buildings" class.  

 

As at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, the Company had no tangible assets pledged or held in 

custody with third parties. 
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c) Financial assets 

Gross value Shares  

Unit in-

vestments 

in closed 

funds 

 Bonds   

Other 

non-

current 

receiva-

bles 

 

Total non-

current  

financial 

assets 

Balance as at  

1 January 2010 674,580,088  500,000  1,036,646  183,847  676,300,581 

Acquisitions  61,402,327   20,200   -   -  61,422,527  

Disposals 26,501,260   500,202   36,652    183,847  27,221,961  

Balance as at  

31  December 2010 709,481,155   19,998   999,994   -   710,501,147  

          

Allowances for    

impairment           

Balance as at  

1 January 2010 188,310,392   -   -   -   188,310,392  

Charge 13,393,431   -      13,393,431  

Reversal 29,845,211    -    -  -   29,845,211  

Balance as at  

31  December 2010 171,858,612   -   -   -   171,858,612  

          

Carrying amount as 

at 1 January 2010 486,269,696  500,000  1,036,646  183,847  487,990,189 

          

Carrying amount as 

at  

31 December 2010 537,622,543  19,998  999,994  -  538,642,535 

 

 

Shares 

 

Acquisitions mainly comprise of purchases of shares from the stock market, amounting to RON 17,7 million (RON 

8,2 million  SC Fondul Proprietatea SA Bucuresti, RON 6,3 million BRD-Groupe Societe Generale SA, RON 2,5 

million Biofarm SA Bucharest, etc.) and of the value of financial assets resulting from the capital increases, carried 

out by companies from the portfolio of SIF (RON 4,5 million cash contributions and RON 38,8 million 

incorporation of elements of equity) amounting to RON 43,3 million (RON 14,3 million Banca Comerciala 

Romana, RON 13,4 million Banca Transilvania, RON 7,5 million Vrancart SA Adjud, RON 4,5 million Napomar SA 

Cluj, RON 1,8 million Arta Culinara SA Cluj, RON 1,8 million IAMU SA Blaj, etc). 

 

Disposals mainly comprise of the shares sold, amounting to RON 15,7 million  (RON 4,6 million Rompetrol 

Rafinare SA Cluj, RON 3,1 million Prodplast Imobiliare SA, RON 2,4 million Electromagnetica SA Bucuresti, RON 

1,2 million Comagra Beregsau, RON 1,1 million Antibiotice SA Iasi, RON 0,8 million Azomures SA Targu Mures, 

etc) and of shares write off from the portfolio, as a result of the companies’ liquidation, amounting to RON 10,7 

million (Gavazzi Steel SA Otelul Rosu, Ampelum SA Alba, Mobihar SA Harghita, etc.). 

 

As at 31 December 2010, the Company accounted for impairment losses of non-current financial assets, 

amounting to RON 13,393,431, computed as the difference between the lower of the carrying amount 

and the fair value of the assets, determined in accordance with the provisions of Regulation no. 15/2004, 

issued by the National Securities Commission („CNVM”). The value of the adjustment was recognized in 
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equity reserve, alternative treatment allowed by the Order no. 75/2005, of the National Securities 

Commissions, subsequently amended by Order no. 11/2009.   

The reversals of allowances for impairment, amounting to RON 29,845,211, comprise of: 

- Reversal of the allowances recognized for shares that are no longer in the Company’s portfolio, 

amounting to RON 15,140,701 (sold or written off); 

- The increase in market value of financial assets, amounting to RON 14,704,510 for which the 

Company previously recognized impairment allowances.  

The reversals were accounted as follows: RON 12,751,273 as income from reversal of impairment 

allowances (the allowances were previously accounted as expenses) and RON 17,093,938 against reserves 

from recognition of impairment allowances on financial assets (previously, the allowances were charged 

against reserves, in accordance with the provisions of the Order no 11/2009, issued by the National 

Securities Commission).      

 

Units in closed investments funds  

The decrease in balance as at 31 December 2010 is due to the sale of fund units. 

 

Bonds include the value of bonds issued by banks and financial institutions, with a residual maturity 

greater than 1 year.  

 

Other non-current receivables comprise of shares held in companies that have undergone a merger, 

process started at the end of 2009.   

 

 

2.  PROVISIONS 

Provision description 

 

 1 January 

2010 

Transfers 

31 December 

 2010 

 In the  

account 

from the  

account 

 

Provisions for taxes 

  

  (a) 51,826,188 29,583 221,760 51,634,011 

Other provisions (b) 4,242,000 2,447,000 4,242,000 2,447,000 

      

 

Total 

 

56,068,188 2,476,583 4,463,760 54,081,011 

 

 

(a) Provision for taxes, amounting to RON 51,634,011 represents the transposition of the deferred taxes, 

recognized  until 1 January 2006,  for the reserves related to the initial portfolio, tangible assets revaluation 

reserve and for the reserves for shares received at no cost (Note 16). 

The main components of the provision for taxes arising from temporary differences are presented in the 

following table: 

 

  31 December  31 December 

Provisions for taxes related to:   2009  2010 

- Reserves for the value of shares  47,655,530  47,479,041 

- Revaluation reserves  997,387  981,699 

- Reserves for tax facilities  3,173,271  3,173,271 

  

Total provisions for income taxes  51,826,188  51,634,011 

 

In 2010, the provision for tax was reduced by RON 192,177, representing the deferred tax previously 

accounted for reserves from shares received at no cost related to the shares disposed of. 
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(b) Other provisions for risks and charges, amounting to RON 2,447,000, comprise of incentives to 

employees and administrators, payable in 2011, as a result of exceeding the 2010 budgeted profit 

(December 31, 2009 amounting to RON 4,242,000), including social health insurance contribution, 

owed by the Company, in order to be paid after the Ordinary General Shareholders’ Meeting 

approves the individual financial statements for December 31
st
, 2010. 

 

The amount of RON 2,447,000 comprises of: 

- incentives to employees and administrators, as a result of the achievement of the profit, 

amounting to RON 2,250,000 (31
 
December 2009: RON 4,242,000), of which RON 1,912,000 (31 

December 2009: RON 3,400,000) payable to employees and RON 338,000 (31
 
December 2009: 

RON 600,000) payable to administrators; 

- Social health insurance contribution payable, amounting to RON 197,000 (31
 
December 2009: 

RON 242,000); 

 

 

3.   PROFIT APPROPRIATION  

 

On 30
 
April 2010, the Ordinary General Shareholders’ Meeting, approved the appropriation of 2009 

financial year net profit as follows: 

 

Profit appropriation: 

 

 

2009 

 112,185,660 

1. Legal reserve  - 

2. Reserves – for own sources of funding 84,743,197 

3. Dividends  27,442,463 

Total distributed profit  (149.365.315) 

 

112,185,660 

 

In the meeting from 15 March 2011, the Board of Directors decided upon the increase of the value of the 

dividend proposed in the financial statements approved on 7 March 2011. 

 

Consequently, the Board of Directors proposes for the approval of the General Shareholders Meeting called for 

27/28 April 2011, the following profit appropriation of the 2010 financial year profit, amounting to RON 

62,996,316: 

 

- Other reserves for own sources of funding, which will be used in accordance with the Ordinary General 

Shareholders’ Meeting decisions, amounting to RON 30,065,360; 

- Dividends, in gross amount of RON 32,930,956, representing RON 0.06 per share; 

 

Dividends are distributable to shareholders who own shares at the registration date approved by the Ordinary 

General Shareholders’ Meeting. 

 

The Board of Directors proposes, under the provisions of Company Law no. 31/1990 and of the CNVM Order 

no. 75/2005 regarding the approval of accounting regulations in compliance with the 4
th
 Directive of the 

European Economic Community applicable to entities authorised, regulated and supervised by the National 

Securities Commission, modified through the CNVM Order no. 11/2009, the coverage of the accumulated losses 

resulted from the transition to accounting regulations compliant with the 4
th
 Directive of the EEC amounting to 

RON 108,821,801 from other reserves set-up for own sources of funding, appropriated from the net profit of 

previous years. 
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3.   PROFIT APPROPRIATION – AS AMENDED ACCORDING TO THE RESOLUTION OF THE ORDINARY 

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING OF APRIL 28, 2011 

 

 

On 30
 
April 2010, the Ordinary General Shareholders’ Meeting, approved the appropriation of 2009 

financial year net profit as follows: 

 

Profit appropriation: 

 

 

2009 

 112,185,660 

1. Legal reserve  - 

2. Reserves – for own sources of funding 84,743,197 

3. Dividends  27,442,463 

Total distributed profit  (149.365.315) 

 

112,185,660 

 

The Ordinary General Shareholders’ Meeting of April 28, 2011 approved  the appropriation of 2010 financial year 

net profit, amounting to RON 62,996,316 as follows: 

 

- Other reserves for own sources of funding, which will be used in accordance with the Ordinary General 

Shareholders’ Meeting decisions, amounting to RON 6,464,841; 

- Dividends, in gross amount of RON 56,531,475 representing RON 0.103 per share; 

 

Dividends are distributable to shareholders who own shares at the record date approved by the Ordinary General 

Shareholders’ Meeting. 

 

The Board of Directors proposes, under the provisions of Company Law no. 31/1990 and of the CNVM Order no. 

75/2005 regarding the approval of accounting regulations in compliance with the 4
th
 Directive of the European 

Economic Community applicable to entities authorized, regulated and supervised by the National Securities 

Commission, modified through the CNVM Order no. 11/2009, the coverage of the accumulated losses resulted 

from the transition to accounting regulations compliant with the 4
th
 Directive of the EEC amounting to RON 

108,821,801 from other reserves set-up for own sources of funding, appropriated from the net profit of previous 

years. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

Ioan Cuzman   Ștefan Doba 

Chairman & CEO   Economic Director
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4.   ANALYSIS OF THE OPERATING RESULT  

 

Indicator 
 

 

Year ended            

31 December 2009 

  

Year ended          31 

December 2010 

Income from non-current financial assets 1 

 

90,414,635 

  

51,891,144 

Income from current financial assets 2 -  - 

Income from non-current receivables 3 -  - 

Income from disposal of financial assets 4 62,056,894  33,441,654  

Income from services provided  5 -  - 

Income from re-activated receivables and sundry 

debt 6 

-  - 

Income from reversal of provisions 7 15,795,863  17,041,212 

Foreign exchange gain 8 1,188,935  2,786,710 

Interest income 9 9,966,533  7,693,136  

Income from capitalized production 10 -  - 

Other operating income (line 12 to 18), from: 11 1,109,228  657,779 

- research and development 

- royalties, leases and rent 

- sundry activities 

- subsidies 

- other income 

- discounts received 

- other financial income  

 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

 

- 

72,750 

- 

- 

882,228 

- 

154,250 

 

 - 

118,435 

- 

- 

216,460 

- 

322,884 

 

OPERATING INCOME (line 01 to 11) 19 
 

180,532,088 

  

113,511,635 

Losses on receivable from associates  -  - 

Expenses with the disposal of financial assets 21 43,598,125  25,665,672 

Foreign exchange loss 22 1,204,071  2,008,433 

Interest expense  23 -  - 

Fees and commissions expense 24 1,888,724  2,337,960 

Expenses with bank services and similar charges  25 33,436  44,362 

Losses from receivables and sundry debtors 26 739,443  16,105 

Impairment allowances and depreciation expense 27 5,246,974  3,131,817 
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Indicator 
 

 

Year ended   

31 December 2009 

  

Year ended           

31 December 2010 

 

Other operating expenses, out of which:  (line 

29+30+31+34+47) 

 

28 

 

9,383,534 

  

15,105,855 

- materials 

- energy and water  

- personnel, out of which (line 32+33) 

     -salaries 

     -social security  

- Third party services, out of which: (line 35 to 

46): 

     - Maintenance and repairs 

     - Royalties, leases and rent 

     - Insurance premiums 

     - Research and studies  

     - Protocol, advertising and publicity  

     - Transportation of goods and personnel  

     - Travel, postings and transfers  

     - Postal and telecommunications  

     - Other Third party services  

     - Other expenses  

                  - Expenses with discounts granted 

     - Other financial expenses       

- Expenses with other duties, taxes and similar 

payments 

29 

30 

31 

32 

33 

34 

35 

36 

37 

38 

39 

40 

41 

42 

43 

44 

 

45 

46 

 

47 

195,836 

126,485 

7,218,312 

5,600,761 

1,617,551 

1,703,112 

97,148 

91,036 

46,164 

- 

264,385 

711 

118,203 

206,034 

406,032 

219,552 

- 

- 

253,847 

 

139,789 

 264,807 

177,944 

12,420,824 

10,337,777 

2,083,047 

2,069,068 

201,253 

96,444 

45,607 

- 

195,344 

1,210 

169,450 

182,351 

567,357 

340,652 

- 

- 

269,400 

 

173,212 

OPERATING EXPENSES (line 20 to 28) 48 

 

62,094,307 

  

48,310,204 

OPERATING RESULT (line 19-48) 49 

 

118,437,781  
 

 

65,201,431 

 

 

Income and expenses with a certain weight in total are detailed and explained in notes 13 Structure of 

gross income and 14 –Structure of expenses. 
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5.   STATEMENT OF RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES 

 

 

RECEIVABLES 

 

31 December  

2010 

 

Liquidity term  

Less than  

1 year 

More than 

 1 year 

Prepayments to suppliers and  

receivables from clients 

 

2,357 2,357 - 

Dividends receivable a) 3,842,938 3,842,938 - 

Sundry debtors b) 4,105,694 4,105,694 - 

Penalties related to dividends not col-

lected 

 

c) 119,827 119,827 - 

Bank deposits and bonds d) 92,883,196 92,883,196  

Income tax receivable  503,480 503,480  

Adjustments for impairment of receiva-

bles - sundry debtors 

 

e) (7,217,681) (7,217,681) - 

TOTAL  94,239,811 94,239,811 - 

 

a) Dividends receivable amounting to RON 3,842,938 include dividends receivable from previous years 

amounting to RON 3,184,924 and dividends receivable for 2009 amounting to RON 658,014 (31 December 

2009: RON 3,897,429). 

b) Sundry debtors amounting to RON 4,105,694 (31 December 2009: RON 6,205,854) mainly include: RON 

3,913,033 representing shareholdings in a company for which there is a pending litigation with AVAS. 

c) Penalties for dividends not collected and related litigation costs amount to RON 119,827 (31 December 2009: 

RON 139,349)    

d) Bank deposits and bonds (including accrued interest as at 31 December 2010) amounting to RON 92,883,196 

is the amount of bank deposits and corporate bonds with maturity less than one year held by SIF Banat 

Crişana (31 December 2009: RON 127,603,426). 

e) Adjustments for depreciation of receivables amounting to RON 7,217,681 (31 December 2009: RON 

7,005,754) were accounted for:   

- Dividends receivable from previous years amounting to RON 3,184,924 and the related penalties to 

amounting to RON 119,827.    

- The amount of the claim against AVAS, regarding participations amounting to RON 3,912,930. 

 

 

 

RECEIVABLES 

 

31 December 

2009 

 

Liquidity term 

Less than 

1 year 

More than 

1 year 

Prepayments to suppliers and receiva-

bles from clients 

 

1,557 1,557 - 

Debtors from share capital increase  3,897,429 3,897,429 - 

Dividends receivable a) 6,205,854 6,205,854 - 

Sundry debtors b)   - 

Penalties related to dividends not col-

lected 

 

c) 139,349 139,349 - 

Bank deposits and bonds d) 127,603,426 127,603,426 - 

Income tax receivable  122,483 122,483 - 

Adjustments for impairment of receiva-

bles - sundry debtors 

 

e) (7,005,754) (7,005,754) - 

TOTAL  130,964,344 130,964,344 - 
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PAYABLES 

 

 

31 December 

2010 

Settlement term 

 

Less than 1 

year 

 

Between 1 

and 5 years 

More 

than 5 

years 

      

Suppliers  160,698 160,698 - - 

Salaries and social contributions  434,933 434,933 - - 

Other duties and taxes f) 965,232 965,232 - - 

Dividends payable  g) 51,281,139 51,281,139 - - 

Sundry creditors  92,243 92,243 - - 

Payments to be made for non-

current financial assets 

 

h) 10,078,110 10,078,110 - - 

 

Total 

 

63,012,355 63,012,355 - - 

f) Other duties and taxes amounting to RON 965,232 mainly comprise of taxes on dividends paid in December 

2010, and on dividends not yet paid as at 31
 
December2010 which is due in January 2011 (31

 
December 

2009: RON 67,531) 

g) Dividends payable to shareholders amounting to RON 51,281,139 (31 December 2009: RON 51,467,665) 

include dividends payable for 2009 amounting to RON 5,670,443 (31 December 2009: dividends payable for 

2008 amounting to RON 8,666,980) and dividends from previous years amounting to RON 45,610,696. 

(31 December 2009: RON 42,800,685) 

h) The payments to be made for non-current financial assets amounting to RON 10,078,110 (31 December 

2009: RON 20,628,110) represent subscriptions to the share capital increase of the Central Petrosani SA 

company,  amount, which will not be paid as a result of the share capital decrease decision from the 

3 November 2010. 

The Board of Directors proposes that uncollected dividends afferent to financial years previous to 2006 (included) 

amounting RON 35,169,558 are transferred to “Other Reserves” account. The Board of Directors proposes that 

annually,  uncollected dividends for a period longer than 3 years for which the shareholders right to claim such 

dividends has been prescribed, to be accounted in the other reserves account at the end of the year in which the 

legal prescription enters into force.  

 

 

6.   ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES, POLICIES AND METHODS  

6.1 General Information 

The financial statements are the responsibility of the Company and were prepared in accordance with the 

Accounting Regulations compliant with E.E.C. Directive IV, applicable to entities authorized, regulated and 

supervised by the National Securities Commission (C.N.V.M.), approved through the Order no. 75/2005 of the 

President of the National Securities Commission, amended by the Order no. 11/2009, which are applied together 

with the Romanian Accounting Law no. 82/1991, republished with subsequent amendments. 

For the preparation of the annual financial statements the regulations stipulated in CNVM Order 

no.115/14.12.2010 for the approval of Instruction no. 4/2010 for the amendment of Instruction no. 2/2007 

regarding the preparation and publication of annual financial statements by entities authorized, regulated and 

supervised by the National Securities Commission were also taken into account. 

 

These financial statements comprise the individual financial statements of the Company. 

 



SIF BANAT-CRIȘANA | NOTES TO THE INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31 DECEMBER 2010  

(all amounts are presented in RON, unless otherwise stated) 

 

   50 

These individual financial statements have not been prepared to reflect the financial position and results of 

operation and of cash flows of the Company in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. 

In accordance with CNVM Order no. 11/3.02.2011 for the approval of Instruction no. 3/2011, published in the 

Official Gazette no. 145 from 28 February 2011, regarding the application of International Financial Reporting 

Standards by entities authorized, regulated and supervised by the National Securities Commission, the financial 

investment companies have the obligation to prepare annual financial statements, for informative purposes, in 

accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards for the years ended 31 December 2010 and 31 

December 2011. 

 

According to Decision no. 2492/3.12. 2007, issued for the application of Article 2 of the Order of the President of 

the National Securities Commission no. 74/2005, financial investment companies have the obligation to prepare, 

starting with 2007 financial year, annual consolidated financial statements in accordance with the International 

Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as endorsed by the European Union. 

 

The Company prepared a set of consolidated financial statements for 2009, which was made public and 

submitted to CNVM. Due to the lack of a legislative framework that imposes to companies which enter into the 

consolidation perimeter the obligation to prepare a set of financial statements in accordance with IFRS and to 

have this set of financial statements audited, we mention that the consolidated financial statements prepared as 

at 31 December 2009 have an informative role, without reflecting the fair view of the group. These consolidated 

financial statements were not audited taking into account the certainty of a qualified opinion and the high costs 

of auditing in relation to the relevance of information provided to investors. 

 

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors in its meeting from 27 April 2010 

and in the General Shareholders Meeting dated 30 April 2010, shareholders have been informed in respect of the 

consolidated financial statements. 

 

6.2 Accounting principles underlying the individual financial statements: 

 

The financial statements were prepared on historical cost basis, in accordance with the provisions of the Order no. 

75/2005 of the President  of the National Securities Commission regarding the approval of Accounting 

Regulations compliant with E.E.C. Directive IV, applicable to entities authorized, regulated and supervised by 

CNVM, amended by CNVM Order no. 11/2009. 

These individual financial statements were prepared compliant with the accrual basis of accounting. Therefore, the 

effects of transactions and events are recognized when incurred and are accounted for and reported in the 

financial statements of the related periods. 

The accounting principles underlying the individual financial statements are: 

 Going concern principle - it assumes that the Company will continue its activity in the foreseeable future, 

without becoming impossible for the Company to continue its activity and without significantly curtailing the 

scale of its activity. 

 

 Consistency principle – it assumes the consistency in the rules and methods selected for evaluation, 

accounting of transactions and presentation of assets and liabilities, as well as of the results, ensuring the 

comparability of financial information presented 

 Prudency principle – the value of each element is determined taking into account: 

a) only the profits recognized until the date of the preparation of the financial statements  

b) foreseeable liabilities and potential losses, which arose in the current or previous financial year, 

even if these occur between balance sheet date and its preparation date. 

c) all the depreciations, regardless if the financial year result is profit or loss. 

 Accrual’s principle – all income and expenses incurred in the financial year are accounted for, irrespective of 
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the date of payment or collection. 

 Principle of separate valuation of assets and liabilities – it assumes separate valuation of assets and 

liabilities.  

 Intangibility principle – the opening balance sheet for each financial year corresponds to the prior financial 

year closing balance sheet. 

 Netting off principle – assets are not netted off against liabilities, respectively income is not netted off 

against expenses.  

 Substance over form principle – the information disclosed in the financial statements illustrates the 

economic substance of events and transactions, and not merely their legal form; 

 Materiality principle – only those items which are material are individually disclosed in the financial 

statements. Those items with immaterial amounts, which have similar functions and nature have to be 

aggregated, their separate disclosure is not necessary.   

6.3 Accounting policies  

 (a) Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with CNVM Order no. 75/2005, requires management to 

make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported value of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent 

assets and contingent liabilities at balance sheet date, and income and expenses reported to the respective 

financial year. Although the estimates and assumptions are made by management, using the most reliable 

information available at balance sheet date, the actual results may differ from these estimates. 

(b) Going concern 

The nature of the Company’s operations and the result of the economic policies currently implemented may 

generate variations in what regards future cash inflows. The Administrators believe that the Company will be able 

to continue its activity as a going concern in the foreseeable future and, consequently, the financial statements 

were prepared in accordance with this principle. 

(c) Foreign currency transactions 

Functional and presentation currency 

The functional and presentation currency of the financial statements is the Romanian Leu (RON). 

 

Foreign currency transactions and balances  

The Company’s foreign currency transactions are translated to RON at the exchange rate communicated by the 

National Bank of Romania (“NBR”), for the transaction date. Any gains or losses resulting from settlement of 

foreign currency transactions and from conversion of foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities, are 

recognized in the profit or loss account of the current year.  

The foreign currency balances are translated to RON, at the exchange rates communicated by NBR for balance 

sheet date.  

Profit or loss resulting from settlement of foreign currency transactions and from translation of foreign currency 

items is recognized in the profit or loss account. 

The main exchange rates used for the conversion of foreign currency balances to RON, as at 31 December 2010 

are: RON 3,2045 for 1 USD (31 December 2009:  2,9361 ) and RON 4,2848 for 1 EURO (31 December 2009: 4,2282) 

 (d)  Intangible assets 

An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and the cost 

of the assets can be measured reliably. 
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- Recognition 

Intangible assets are initially recognized at acquisition cost. 

- Subsequent expenditures 

Subsequent expenditures will be capitalized when it is probable that they will generate future economic benefits 

over the initially planned performance and they can be measured reliably. 

- Measurement at balance sheet date 

Intangible assets are presented in the balance sheet at acquisition cost, less cumulated value adjustments. 

- Amortization  

Acquisition cost of patents, trademarks, licenses, computer software are capitalized and amortized using the 

straight-line method, according to their useful life, up to 5 years. 

(e) Tangible assets  

Tangible assets are assets held for the own use of the Company or for rental to third parties, are used by the 

Company for periods greater than one year and have an acquisition cost greater than RON 1,800. 

- Recognition 

Tangible assets are recognized at acquisition cost. 

- Subsequent expenditures 

Expenses with maintenance and repairs of tangible assets are recognized in the profit or loss account when 

incurred whereas major improvements of the tangible assets, which result in increase of their useful life, or in a 

significant increase in their capacity to generate economic benefits, are capitalized.    

- Measurement at balance sheet date 

Tangible assets are presented in the balance sheet at acquisition cost, less cumulated value adjustments, or, at 

revalued amount. 

In accordance with the alternative measurement rules, tangible assets are revalued periodically and therefore they 

are presented in the balance sheet at revalued amount. The measurement is recorded based on a revaluation 

report prepared by an evaluator accredited by ANEVAR. 

The revaluation of land and buildings is performed every 3 years, both the gross carrying amount and the 

accumulated depreciation related to buildings being updated.  

The resulting differences are recognized in the account „Revaluation reserve”, as a separate element of the equity.  

An increase arising as a result of a revaluation should be recognized as income to the extent that it represents a 

reversal of a revaluation decrease of the same asset, previously recognized as an expense.  

If the carrying amount of an asset is reduced as a result of a revaluation, this decrease is recognized as an 

expense. Nevertheless, a decrease arising as a result of a revaluation is debited to the related revaluation surplus, 

to the extent that it does not exceed any amount previously credited to the revaluation surplus relating to the 

same asset.  

Any revaluation surplus included in equity may be transferred in reserves when it is realized. 

- Depreciation  

Depreciation is calculated at cost, using the straight-line method, over the estimated useful life of the assets, as 

follows:         Years 

Buildings and special constructions 10 – 50 

Technical installations and machinery 3 - 30 

Furniture, office equipment, other tangible assets 3 – 20 

 

Land is not depreciated because it is assumed it has an indefinite useful life. 

- Sale and disposal  

Written off or sold tangible assets are derecognised from the balance sheet, altogether with the accumulated 

depreciation. Any resulting profit or loss from such operations is determined as the difference between the 
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proceeds from sale and the carrying amount and it is included in the profit or loss account. 

(f) Allowances for impairment of assets 

In order to identify any possible impairment trigger, the Company performs a review of its assets’ carrying 

amount at each balance sheet date. If such triggers occur, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of its 

assets. If the carrying amount of the assets exceeds their recoverable amount, the Company accounts for an 

allowance to impairment. 

If a change occurs in the conditions existent at the date the recoverable amount was assessed, then the allowance 

for impairment may be reversed. The adjustment reversal may be performed, provided that the current net 

carrying amount of the asset will not exceed its historical net accounting value, considering the depreciation 

charge and ignoring the allowance for impairment.     

(g) Financial instruments 

The portfolio of financial instruments portfolio comprises of: 

- non-current financial assets 

- current financial assets 

(g.1.) Non-current financial assets 

Non-current financial assets include: securities and other financial instruments held as non-current assets and 

other non-current receivables. 

Securities and other financial instruments held as non-current assets include: shares held as financial assets 

available for sale, units held in closed investment funds, bonds issued by municipalities, financial-institutions and 

the state with a maturity greater than 1 year. 

Other receivables comprise of deposits placed at banks with a maturity greater than 1 year and other non-

current receivables.  

(a) Recognition 

Financial assets are recognized at the date they were transferred (settlement date).  

In the case of listed companies, all shares purchases and sales which involve a settlement in a certain period, 

determined according to the regulations in place or upon market agreement, are recognized at the date the 

transaction is recognized at the Bucharest Stock Exchange. 

In case of unlisted companies, the shares purchases are recognized at the date of registration at the Trade 

Registry and shares disposals are accounted for at settlement date. 

Management decides the way in which the classification of financial assets will be made upon the acquisition 

date. 

(b) Measurement of non-current financial assets 

- at acquisition date the non-current financial assets are measured at acquisition cost 

- at disposal date the non-current financial assets are measured using the weighted average cost method  

At the balance sheet date the acquisition value is compared with the value established through inventory 

procedures, called inventory value. The negative differences between inventory value and book value are 

recognized as adjustments for impairment. The positive differences between the inventory value and the book 

value are not accounted for, in accordance with the CNVM’s Order no. 75/2005. 

For the shares, the inventory value is the fair value compliant with the provisions of CNVM Regulation 

no. 15/2004. 

Therefore the fair value of listed shares is determined using the weighted average quotation from the Bucharest 

Stock Exchange, calculated for the last 3 calendar months. 

For unlisted securities, the fair value is determined by using the periodical financial reports of the issuers required 

by the Ministry of Finance, weighted depending on control, and for unlisted securities held at banking companies 

the fair value is determined by applying the percentage of the share capital owned by the Company to the value 
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of equity from the reports submitted by the issuers to NBR, measurement methods provided in the CNVM 

Regulation no. 15/2004. The securities for which the company does not obtain the financial statements within 90 

days from the deposition date at the Trade Register are considered as zero value.  

The Company chose the measurement of securities held as non-current financial assets according to CNVM 

Regulation no. 15/2004, because it is a generally accepted method used in the reports submitted to CNVM and 

investors, in weekly, monthly and annual calculation of the net assets. The Company 

considers that the value of investment presented to investors cannot be determined by different methods. The 

Company has consistently applied this method of measurement. 

 

 (c) Impairment 

If at the balance sheet date, the value of financial assets has decreased with the difference between the value 

established under the above principles and the carrying amount, adjustments are made for impairment. 

CNVM Order no. 75/2005 amended by Order no. 11/2009 provides the alternative accounting treatment for 

recognition of adjustments for impairment of financial assets, respectively in the profit or loss account or in 

equity. Starting with 2008, the Company decided to apply the accounting treatment for recognition of 

impairment adjustments in equity. 

 

Measurement at minimum values cannot continue if the reasons for which the respective adjustments were made 

are no longer applicable. 

Adjustments for impairment will be cancelled or reversed for the financial assets disposed of or in case of fair 

value appreciation. 

The reversal of adjustments for depreciation will be done proportionately according to the source from which 

they were formed, respectively at income and / or reserves. 

(d) Derecognition 

The derecognition of financial assets is effected at the settlement date or at the date the ownership is transferred.  

Any resulting gain or loss from derecognition is determined as the difference between the proceeds from sale 

and the carrying amount of the securities sold reduced with the related reserves.  

The results from the financial assets sold are accounted for in the profit or loss account. 

 

(g.2.) Current financial assets include shares, bonds held in closed-end investment funds, securities, bonds 

issued by municipalities, financial companies and banks with maturity less than one year, purchased in order to 

realize a profit in the short term. 

Measurement: 

- at acquisition date the current financial assets are measured at acquisition cost 

- at disposal date the current financial assets are measured using the weighted average cost method 

- at balance sheet date the impairment of financial assets held as current assets determined through 

inventory process, is accounted for as expense. The positive difference between the inventory value and the 

book value are not recognized.  

Securities listed on a regulated market are valued at balance sheet date, at the closing quotation, and those not 

traded at historical cost less any impairment adjustments. 

(h) Inventory 

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined by first in first out method 

(FIFO) for all types of inventories. Net realizable value is estimated based on the selling price used in the ordinary 

course of business minus the completion and selling costs. 

(i) Receivables  

Receivables are measured at the expected recoverable amount. For doubtful receivables, adjustments for 

impairment are made when they are identified. 
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(j) Payables    

Payables are accounted for at nominal amount. 

(k) Dividends payable 

Dividends declared before the balance sheet date are accounted for as liabilities on the balance sheet date. 

Dividends proposed or declared after balance sheet date are not recognized as liabilities but they are disclosed in 

the notes to the financial statements. 

(l) Cash and cash equivalents   

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. 

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, current accounts with 

banks, treasury advances and short term financial assets (securities, bonds) with a maturity less than 3 months. 

Cash equivalents are highly liquid, short term financial assets, which can be easily converted to cash and bear an 

insignificant risk of change in value. 

(m) Provisions  

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising from past events, for 

the settlement of which an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is necessary, and when the liability 

can be reliably measured. 

Provisions for incentives granted to employees and administrators for the realization of the profit, are  

recognized in accordance with the provisions of the Collective Labor Agreement. 

(n)  Taxation 

Provisions for taxes  

Deferred taxes were recognized by the Company in accordance with the Accounting Regulations in force until 1 

January 2006. 

Deferred taxes on balance as at the end of 2005 were transposed to provisions for taxes. 

Deferred tax was calculated at rates expected to be enacted for the year of the realization of the asset or the 

settlement of the liability.  

Provisions for taxes are set-up for future amounts payable due to the state budget, provided that those amounts 

are not reflected as current liabilities in relation to the state. 

Provisions for taxes are calculated from 1 January 2006 under the provisions of Accounting Regulations in 

accordance with CEE Directive IV. 

Current tax expenses 

In 2010, the Company paid a corporate tax rate of 16%, equal to the rate in force in 2009. 

Income tax calculation starts from the accounting result, corrected with the deductible and non-deductible items 

to which tax rates enacted at that date, are applied.  

(o) Employees benefits 

During the normal course of its operations, the Company makes payments to health, pensions and 

unemployment national funds, in accordance with legal regulations in force during the year, calculated on gross 

salaries. These costs are accounted for in the profit or loss account, upon recognition of the employees’ salaries. 

All the employees of the Company are members of the Romanian state pension plan. 

The Company retains and transfers to private pension funds, the amounts with which employees are enrolled in a 

voluntary pension plan. 

The persons who retire at the limit age can benefit from a social help amounting to 5 net average salaries. 

(p) Revenue recognition 

Income from transactions 

Income from trading shares is recognized at gross amount (the value of transaction), and those resulted from 

transactions with current financial assets are recognized based on the net value (the difference between selling 

price and cost). 
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Interest income 

Interest income is recognized periodically (monthly), proportionally, while the income is generated, in the profit or 

loss account for all financial instruments. Interest income includes fixed income from financial assets and 

commercial titles, as well as reductions and premiums related to treasury securities. 

 

For interest income for which the collection has become uncertain, the adjustment for impairment is      

recognized separately as an expense. The reduction or cancellation of adjustments for impairment is made by 

reversal if the allowance for impairment is no longer justified. 

Income from non-current assets  

Income from non-current assets includes: 

- Dividend income which are recognized when the right of collection is established by the shareholders and for 

the values presented by the companies in the financial statements 

- Income from non-current shares received as a result of share capital increase by  the companies from 

portfolio, through the incorporation of reserves from the net profit or the share premiums, are        

recognized at nominal value, as follows: 

      - For the securities held in closed companies, when the capital increase is recognized at the Trade 

Register 

      - For the securities held in companies listed on regulated markets, when the changes are    

recognized in the Stock Exchange Register. 

(q) Expenses recognition 

Expenses related to financial investments disposed of 

Expenses related to financial investments disposed of equal the carrying amount of the securities ceded 

(calculated using the weighted average cost), reduced by the amount of reserves afferent to the respective 

securities. 

Expenses with bank commissions 

Expenses with bank commissions are recognized when they occur. Fees from negotiating or from participation in 

the negotiation of a transaction, such as loans, shares or other securities, purchase or sale of business, are 

recognized at the conclusion of the transaction. 

(r) Other operating income and expenses  

Other operating income and expenses are recognized when they occur.  

 (s) Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders to the 

weighted average number of shares for the year.  

 

 

7.    PARTICIPATIONS AND SOURCES OF FUNDING 

 

The share capital of SIF Banat-Crişana has a value of RON 54,884,926.80, being divided into 548,849,268 shares 

with face value of RON 0.1000 and is the direct result of subscriptions made to the share capital of SIF, by 

converting into shares the amounts due as dividends according to Law no. 55/1995 and Law no.133/1996. As at 

31 December 2010 the number of shareholders was 5,834,485 ( 31 December 2009: RON 5,849,283). 

 

Shares issued by SIF Banat-Crişana are traded on the Bucharest Stock Exchange since November 1999. The 

evidence regarding the shares and shareholders is held by the SC Depozitarul Central SA Bucharest. 

According to the incorporation deed, any person may acquire by any means or may possess, alone or together 

with persons acting as a group, shares in the company, but not more than 1% of its share capital. 

Voting rights shall be suspended for shareholders exceeding the limit of 1% and the shareholders are   obliged to 

sell shares exceeding this limit within three months. 
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As at 31 December 2010 there are two shareholders which own more than 1%. (2009: 2 shareholders). 

  

The shareholders’ structure as at 31 December 2010 was as follows: 

  31 December 2010  

 

Number of  

shareholders 

Number of  

shares 

Percentage  

(%) Amount (RON) 

Individuals 5,834,029 291,026,216 53.02% 29,102,622 

Companies 456 257,823,052 46.98% 25,782,305 

TOTAL 5,834,485 548,849,268 100,00% 54,884,927 

 

The shareholders’ structure as at 31 December 2009 was as follows: 

  31 December 2009  

 

Number of  

shareholders 

Number of  

shares 

Percentage  

(%) Amount (RON 

Individuals 5,848,809 309,398,880 56.37% 30,939,888 

Companies 474 239,450,388 43.63% 23,945,039 

TOTAL 5,849,283 548,849,268 100.00% 54,884,927 

 

8.  INFORMATION REGARDING EMPLOYEES AND MEMBERS OF THE MANAGEMENT AND 

SUPERVISION BODIES    

 

  2009  2010 

 

Expenses with salaries  5,420,599  6,162,086     

Expenses with insurance and social security  1,617,551  2,083,047    

Other staff expenses  180,162  175,691 

Expenses with incentives granted to Employees 

and directors as a result of profit realization*  -  4,000,000  

 

TOTAL  7,218,312  12,420,824   

* As at 31 December 2009 a provision for risks and charges was created for incentives to be granted to 

employees and directors as a result of exceeding the budgeted profit in 2009. In 2010, after the approval of the 

financial statements for 2009, the provision was reversed and the amount was included in the     expenses with 

incentives granted to employees and administrators.  

 

Remuneration paid to employees in 2010 and 2009 amounted to RON 6,162,086 and RON 5,420,599, 

respectively, of which: 

    2009    2010 

  No. of    No. of   

  Employees  Salaries  employees  Salaries 

Employees  78  3,307,602  70  3,799,201 

Administrators  5  298,252  5  310,320 

Directors  9  1,814,745  9  2,052,565 

         

Total  91*  5,420,599  83*  6,162,086 

 

*There is one person that holds the role of administrator and director based on a mandate contract. 
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a) Remuneration of directors and administrators 

During the financial year, there were no prepayments and loans granted to directors and administrators of the 

Company, except for travel prepayments in the interest of the service. 

As at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, the administrators had concluded contracts for professional 

liability insurance.  

The Company has no contractual obligations regarding pensions to former administrators and directors of the 

Company. 

b) Employees 

As at 31 December 2010, the Company had 83 employees (2009: 91) of which 78 were permanent employees 

(2009: 5) and 5 were temporary employees (2009: 5). The average number of employees in 2010 was of 81 (2009: 

86). 

 

9.  ANALYSIS OF THE MAIN FINANCIAL AND ECONOMIC RATIOS 

 

                                                                                                       2009 2010 

1.  LIQUIDITY RATIOS   

a) Current liquidity ratio 

Current assets/ Current liabilities                                                                                              

Current assets                                                                                                     

Current liabilities                                                                                              

1.99 

135,204,125  

67,901,886     

1.76 

111,377,364 

63,337,063 

b) Quick asset ratio 

Current assets - Inventories /Current liabilities                                               

Current assets - Inventories                                                                

Current liabilities                                                                            

1.99 

135,204,125  

67,901,886     

1.76 

111,377,364 

63,337,063 

2. Risk ratios                                                                          not the case                       not the case 

3. Activity ratios 

a) Clients receivables days 

Average receivables balance/ Turnover * 365                           

Average receivables balance (contains debtors- Note 5a)          

Turnover (the total operating income)                                     

Average payables balance/ Purchases of goods except for 

services * 365                                                                        

Average payables balance                                                                

Purchases of goods except for services- credit movement 401        

 

 

21 days                          

10,425,052                      

180,532,088                   

 

13 days                              

75,602 

2,189,233                    

 

 

30 days                          

9,470,747                      

113,511,635                   

 

8 days                              

54,386 

2,441,325 

b)Non-current assets turnover 

Turnover/Non-current assets                                                                                          

Turnover (total operating income)                                                           

Non-current assets                                                                                  

0.37 

180,532,088 

494,047,388 

0.21 

113,511,635 

544,587,523 

c)Total assets turnover 

Turnover/Total assets                                                                       

Turnover (total operating income)                                                     

Non-current assets                                                                                       

0.29 

180,532,088 

629,251,513 

0.17 

113,511,635 

655,964,887 

4.Profitability ratios   

a)Return on capital employed 

Earnings before interest and tax/Capital employed                                                

Earnings before interest and tax                                                                   

Capital employed (equity)                                                                          

23.68% 

118,437,781 

500,203,266 

12.11% 

65,201,431 

538,546,764 
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                                                                                                       2009 2010 

5. Earnings per share ratios 

a)Earnings per share 

Basic Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to shareholders by the 

weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, less shares repurchased by the 

Company during the year. There were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares during the year. 

 

Profit attributable to shareholders (RON) 

 

Weighted average number of ordinary 

shares on balance in the financial year 

Basic earnings per share  

(RON per share)   

 

112,185,660 

 

                                           

548,849,268       

 

0.20        

 

62,996,316 

 

 

548,849,268 

 

0.11 

b)The ratio of share market price and 

earnings per share 

Average market price per share (RON) (i)                                               

Earnings per share (RON) (ii)                                                                  

The ratio of share market price and 

earnings per share (i)/(ii)               

 

 

0,8561 

 

0,2044 

4,19 

 

 

1,2214 

 

0,1148 

10,64 

 

 

10.  OTHER INFORMATION 

 

a) Information regarding the presentation of the Company 

 

Societatea de Investitii Financiare Banat Crişana SA ( the "Company") was set up under the Law no. 133/1996 

through the reorganization and transformation of the Private Property Fund Banat-Crişana and it is a joint-stock 

Company operating under Law 31/1990 and Law no. 297/2004. 

 

SIF Banat-Crişana is located in Arad, 35 A Calea Victoriei, Arad County, code 310158, phone no: 0257.234.167, Fax: 

0257.250.165. The registration number from the Trade Registry Office is J02/1898/1992 and the unique fiscal 

identification number is: 2761040. 

 

The Company's depositary since July 2005, has been ING Bank NV Amsterdam Bucharest Branch, and the 

Company registry services are provided by SC Depozitarul Central SA Bucharest. 

 

The Company’s core activity is: 

- Placements in financial instruments, in order to maximize the value of own shares in accordance with 

regulations in force; 

- Management of the investment portfolio and exercise of all rights associated to the instruments in which it 

invests.  

- Other related activities in accordance with the regulations in force.  

b) Information about the relationship with the companies in which SIF Banat-Crişana holds a share 

of over 20%  

 

In order to motivate the management of the companies in which SIF Banat-Crişana has participations, 

management contracts were signed with the companies which SIF Banat-Crişana has a significant interest. 

For more information regarding the companies in which SIF Banat-Crişana holds participations of more than 20%, 

please see Note 11. 
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c) Information on current income tax 

The fiscal profit for the year ended 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009 is presented below: 

  31 December  31 December 

  2009  2010 

 

Accounting profit  118,437,781  65,201,431 

Non-deductible expenses  31,416,767  19,007,166 

Non-taxable income  (110,102,117)  (69,242,969) 

Other taxable items   28,076  54,567 

Taxable profit  39,780,507  15,020,195 

Income tax rate  16%  16% 

Current income tax  6,364,881  2,403,231 

Other facilities  (112,760)   (198,116) 

 

Current income tax payable  6,252,121  2,205,115 

 

 

 

d) Turnover 

Turnover includes total operating income. The largest share in total income is represented by the income from 

non-current financial assets from disposal of financial investments. 

e) Deferred income 

Deferred income as at 31 December 2010 amounts to RON 324,708, and includes the proceeds from the 

liquidation of companies from the portfolio, for which the liquidation procedure has not yet been finalized (31 

December 2009: RON 324,708). 

f) Installments paid under a lease contract 

As at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009, the Company did not have operational or financial  leases. 

g) Fees paid to auditors 

The Company paid in 2010 a total of RON 106,577 for the audit of the financial statements of the year 2009 and 

for the review of the financial reporting as at 30 June 2010 (2009: RON 94,569). 

h) Contingent liabilities and commitments given 

Contracts for purchases of non-current tangible and financial assets 

 As at 31 December 2010 there were tangible assets in progress amounting to RON 73,901, which were 

finalized in January 2011 (31 December 2009: 0).  

 As at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009 the Company had no contracts for raw materials and 

spare parts. 

 As at 31 December 2010 the Company had no contracts for the purchase of non-current financial assets 

(Note 5). 

 As at 31 December 2010, the Company had contracts for subscription to the share capital of one company, 

for the total amount of RON 10,078,110 (2009: RON 20,628,110) (Note 5). The amount will not be 

transferred as a result of the decision taken on 3 November 2010. 

 As at 31 December 2010 the Company has no contracts signed for transfer of equity shares (31 December 

2009: RON 2,258,160) 

i) Commitments received 

As at 31 December 2010 there were no commitments received. 
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11.  PORTFOLIO STRUCTURE 

As at 31 December 2010 , the structure of the Company’s portfolio is presented as follows: 

 Description Purchase value 

Value calculated 

according to 

Reg. 15/2004 

Differences 

± 

I Non-current  financial assets    

A 

Securities listed on a regulated market or an 

alternative trading system; 486,897,545 833,024,128 346,126,583 

B 

Securities not listed on a regulated market or 

an alternative trading system; 222,583,610 469,783,328 247,199,718 

C 

Debt instruments issued by the Central Public 

Administration; - - - 

D 

Debt instruments issued by Local Public Ad-

ministration - - - 

E 

Bonds of companies whose securities are 

listed on a regulated market; 999,994 999,994 - 

F 

Shares and bonds of closed companies whose 

securities are not listed on a regulated market; - - - 

G Other assets or financial instruments 19,998 22,215 2,217 

I Total non-current financial assets 710,501,147* 1,303,829,665                                                                                                                                                                                                            593,328,518 

 

II 

 

Current financial assets    

A 

Securities listed on a regulated market or an 

alternative trading system;        2,317,103 1,185,750 (1,131,353) 

II Total current financial assets                 2,317,103** 1,185,750                                                                                                                                                                                                            (1,131,353) 

III Corporate and municipal bonds with a ma-

turity of less than a year booked as  

receivables 13,090 13,090        

        

       Total portfolio I+II+III                     712,831,340 1,305,028,505                                                                                                                                                                                                            592,197,165 
 

*The balance sheet position "securities and other financial instruments held as non-current financial    assets" 

includes securities available for sale, at book value or cost less adjustments for impairment, amounting to RON 

171,858,612, calculated as at 31 December 2010, as the difference between the higher book value and the fair 

value determined according to CNVM Regulation no. 15/2004 (Note 1). 

**The balance sheet position "Other current financial assets" includes securities held for trading          presented at 

cost less adjustments for impairment as at 31 December 2010 amounting to RON 1,138,441 plus treasury bills 

(including accrued interest) amounting to RON 15,215,408 (foreign currency denominated t-bills amount to RON 

14,901,038-Note 15). 

As at 31 December 2010,  the structure of the  portfolio, based on the holding percentage is: 

% participation  Number of 

companies 

Book value Share in total  

portfolio 

Above 50% 31 232,321,287 32,64% 

Between 20-50% 54 49,864,571 7,01% 

Under 20% 192 429,612,400 60,35% 

Total 277 711,798,258                  100,00% 
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As at 31 December 2009 the structure  of the Company’s portfolio is presented as follows: 

 Description Purchase value 

Value calculated 

according to 

Reg. 15/2004 

Differences 

± 

I Non-current financial assets    

A 

Securities listed on a regulated market or an 

alternative trading system; 473,102,808 1,032,102,584 558,999,776 

B 

Securities listed on a regulated market or an 

alternative trading system; 201,477,280 439,326,162 237,848,882 

C 

Debt instruments issued by the Central Public 

Administration; - - - 

D 

Debt instruments issued by local public      

administration 36,652 36,652 - 

E 

Bonds of companies whose securities are listed 

on a regulated market; 999,994 999,994 - 

F 

Shares and bonds of closed companies whose 

securities are not listed on a regulated market; - - - 

G Other assets or financial instruments 500,000 500,124 124 

I Total non-current financial assets 676,116,734* 1,472,965,516                                                                                                                                                                                                            796,848,782 

 

II 

 

Current financial assets    

A 
Securities listed on a regulated market or an 

alternative trading system;       2,503,657 1,326,971 (1,176,686) 

II Total current financial assets 2,503,657** 1,326,971                                                                                                                                                                                                            (1,176,686) 

III 

Corporate and municipal bonds with a ma-

turity of less than a year booked as receiva-

bles 990,000 990,000  

 

 

 

 

Total portfolio I+II+III 679,610,391 1,475,282,487                                                                                                                                                                                                            795,672,096 
 

*The balance sheet position "Total non-current financial assets" includes securities available for sale, listed at 

book value or cost less adjustments for impairment, amounting to RON 188,310,392, calculated as at 

31 December 2009, as the difference between the higher book value and the fair value, determined according to 

CNVM Regulation no. 15/2004 (Note 1). 

**Balance sheet position "Other current financial assets" includes securities presented at cost, less       

adjustments for impairment as at 31 December 2009, in amount of RON 1,191,926, plus any treasury bills 

(including accrued interest) amounting to RON 2,431,442. 

 

As at 31 December 2009 the structure  of the Company’s portfolio is presented as follows: 

% participation  Number of 

companies 

Book value Share in total  

portfolio 

Above 50% 31 216,173,361 31,93% 

Between 20-50% 62 59,682,894 8,81% 

Under 20% 212 401,227,490 59,26% 

Total 305 677,083,745                  100,00% 
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In accordance with the applicable laws, the depositary services for the Company were provided by ING Bank NV 

Amsterdam Bucharest Branch. 

In accordance with section 6.6 (1) of the Annex to the CNVM Order no. 75/2005 the entities in which the 

Company holds more than 20% are presented below. The information regarding total equity and  reserves and 

the profit or loss of the companies from the portfolio is not available for 2010. 

  List of companies in which SIF holds over 20% at 31 December 2010  

        

No 

 

Unique 

identifi-

cation 

code 

Company Legal headquarters 

Partici-

pation 

% 

Share  

capital 

Carrying 

amount 

1 6496150 VALY-TIM Timișoara Mehadiei nr. 5 99.999 5,435,000 6,155,955 

2 17597885 CENTRAL Petroșani Str. 1 Decembrie 1918 nr. 88 99.999 14,984,375 14,984,375 

3 2204171 
TRANS EURO 

HOTEL 
Baia Mare Bucuresti nr. 23 99.935 6,600,205 6,600,205 

4 14393678 
BETA 

TRANSPORT 
Cluj-Napoca Giordano Bruno nr. 1-3  99.757 2,412,798 2,412,798 

5 199176 NAPOMAR Cluj-Napoca Muncii nr. 14 99.435 25,640,603 25,864,965 

6 20919450 VEST METAL Oradea Uzinelor Nr. 4 98.946 6,832,145 6,836,066 

7 20919450 
DACIA MERIDI-

AN EXPRES 
Arad Calea Victoriei nr. 33-35 98.904 938,580 938,580 

8 11134377 
COMPLEX  

LABORATOARE 
Cluj-Napoca Traian nr. 44/46 98.825 3,981,376 3,982,357 

9 8326542 
COMBI  

SPEDITION                                    
Arad Nicolae Bălcescu nr. 22 98.748 5,947,550 5,947,550 

10 12274093 HOTEL MESESUL  Zalău 1 Decembrie 1918 nr. 11/A 98.398 1,342,518 1,430,978 

11 21895472 AGRORENT Arad Feleacului nr. 1, ap. 14 97.840 965,188 965,188 

12 56150 
CALIPSO  

ORADEA                                     
Oradea 

P-ța Independenței   

nr. 53 bl. A10 
96.302 39,141,050 39,142,739 

13 684200 SILVANA Cehu Silvanei Plopilor nr. 2 96.283 3,609,430 3,790,498 

14 2736489 ARIO*                                             Bistrița Industriei nr. 10 93.641 13,035,178 13,034,523 

15 13964571 M.C.B                                          Baia Mare Bd. Unirii  nr. 5 92.591 678,330 678,330 

16 11187762 BISTRITA                                     Cluj-Napoca Aurel Vlaicu  nr. 10 91.978 84,941 86,483 

17 2124420 CORA                                               Hunedoara Bdul Dacia nr. 9, bl. A1-2 90.992 154,445 154,445 

18 48807 
LEGUME  

FRUCTE                                     
Oradea Dimboviței nr. 29 89.980 1,215,035 1,215,035 

19 199060 ARTA CULINARA                                      Cluj-Napoca I. Maniu nr. 21 87.447 2,626,386 2,558,348 

20 2127419 RUSCA Hunedoara Dacia nr.10 87.659 3,440,560 5,069,557 

21 201896 NAPOTEX                                            Cluj-Napoca str. Traian Vuia nr. 208 87.392 1,024,950 1,024,950 

22 8231299 
COMCEREAL 

CLUJ                                     
Turda Str 22 Decembrie nr. 35a 86.280 4,860,980 5,878,275 

23 201624 COMAT CLUJ                                         Cluj-Napoca Traian Vuia nr. 206 84.744 2,088,363 2,074,177 

24 1681776 COMALIM                                            Arad Ursului nr. 21 82.735 1,233,245 1,206,920 

25 1847217 URBAN (TCM)                                         Lugoj Timișorii  nr.151 80.454 530,970 530,970 

26 1766830 IAMU                                               Blaj Gh. Baritiu nr. 38 76.695 12,143,833 13,687,863 

27 1454846 VRANCART                                           Adjud E. Teodoroiu nr. 17 74.717 59,439011 59,742,235 

28 2215278 SOIZA                                              
Sighetu  

Marmației 
P-ța Libertății Nr. 5 72.282 214,413 214,413 

29 575688 SOMPLAST                                           Năsăud G. Cosbuc nr.147 70.751 5,757,950 5,405,915 

30 3226682 AGMONIA                                            Oțelul Roșu 22 Decembrie 1989 nr. 6 57.570 77,225 77,225 

 Total  book value  of companies in which SIF Banat-Crișana holds more than 50% 232,321,287 
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No. 

 

Unique 

identifi-

cation 

code 

Company Legal headquarters 

Participa-

tion  

% 

Share 

capital 

Carrying 

amount 

32 2135179 CONPET*                                             Petroșani Fabricii  nr.11 45.715 218,928 218,928 

33 1691214 NOVISUINTEST*                                       Iratos Iratos 44.846 52,567 52,567 

34 3357599 NORD CONSTRUCTII                                   Carei Uzinei NR. 117 44.310 79,550 79,550 

35 8218044 COMCEREAL CARAS*                                    Resita Lunca Pomostului nr.3/5 42.413 270,203 270,203 

36 1703521 ARADEANCA                                          Arad Padurii nr. 2-4 39.161 222,673 222,673 

37 1901049 FURNIMOB*                                           Constanta Industriala nr. 6 36.956 4,067,295 4,067,295 

38 2196087 COMAR                                              Baia Mare Minerilor  nr.16  34.942 101,503 101,503 

39 2201728 COMBIMAR                                           Baia Mare Fabricii nr.5  34.152 275,800 275,800 

40 16276186 MOBILA USI*                                        Bacău str. Moinesti nr. 34 32.452 126,280 126,280 

41 2816987 ELBAC*                                              Bacău Calea Moinesti nr. 34 32.450 829,956 829,956 

42 17716200 ATLASCARD                                          Deva Pta Unirii nr 10 31.363 32,190 32,190 

43 1062656 
AGROPRODUCT 

RESITA*                                 
Reșița Paul Iorgovici nr.44 30.005 181,800 181,800 

44 2761369 CRISCOM*                                            Chișineu-Criș Infratirii nr.125 30.001 80,180 80,180 

45 5412614 AVISUINPROD*                                        Bistrița Tarpiului nr.26 30.000 1,148,290 1,148,290 

46 11920404 
AGRICOLA 

SATULUNG*                                  
Satulung Satulung nr. 379 30.000 125,153 125,153 

47 89289 MARGA*                                              Marghita Avram Iancu nr. 7 30.000 176,370 176,370 

48 1765460 
TRANSILVANIA  

AIUD*                                 
Aiud Tudor Vladimirescu nr. 51 30.000 116,948 116,948 

49 1731580 LEGUMICOLA*                                         Pecica Nădlacului nr.1528 29.967 168,080 168,080 

50 2441828 UZINA ARDEALUL*                                     Alba Iulia Miciurin nr. 9 29.508 138,983 138,983 

51 7245512 REMAT  MARGHITA*                                    Marghita Brindusei NR. 16 29.390 4,795 4,795 

52 5820559 AGROMEC  RATESTI *                              Ratesti Str. Principala 29.186 10,943 10,943 

53 1719170 
AGROINDUSTRIALA 

NADLAC*                             
Nădlac G. Enescu nr. 85 29.027 166,018 166,018 

54 1770300 COMMIXT*                                            Ocna Mureș Brazilor bl. 20 parter 28.967 26,358 26,358 

55 9654130 MOBIMET*                                            Hațeg Rau Mare  nr. 94 28.875 36,738 36,995 

56 5184591 MOBIPET                                            Petroșani Livezeni  nr.  232 28.874 121,600 122,454 

57 2046136 PETROCART                                          Piatra Neamț Decebal  nr.171 28.541 1,648,375 1,648,375 

58 7072756 METALURGICA*                                        Marghita C. Republicii NR. 72 28.409 126,090 126,090 

59 2152730 MIXT                                               Uricani B-dul Muncii, bl 15/55 28.128 89,105 89,105 

60 6995273 MDF SEBES*                                          Sebes M. Kogalniceanu nr. 59 27.545 237,798 237,798 

61 1690529 ARNO*                                               Arad Sos. Timisoarei km.7 27.233 334,025 334,025 

62 1753147 SUINPROD GALDA*                                     Galda de jos Oiejdea nr.300 27.091 357,710 357,710 

63 569007 MEBIS                                              Bistrita Industriei nr. 4 26.781 866,593 866,593 

64 5484963 COMFRUCT*                                           Lipova Lugojului nr.6 26.382 728,660 728,660 

65 13061000 GAZ VEST                                           Arad Calea Victoriei nr 35A 25.819 10,506,800 10,506,800 
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No 

 

Unique 

identifi-

cation 

code 

Company Legal headquarters 
Participa-

tion % 

Share 

capital 

Carrying 

amount 

66 10693710 FORESTA MUSCEL * Campulung Str. Traian Nr. 158 25.752 137,848 137,848 

67 10702460 FORESTIERA                                         Tirgoviste Aleea Sinaia nr. 6 25.752 105,673 105,673 

68 5485900 ELAR                                               Pitesti Crinului  nr. 26 25.626 244,588 244,588 

69 1758365 UTEPS*                                              Alba Iulia Clujului   nr. 26 24.466 627,698 627,698 

70 5462698 EXFOR*                                             Bucuresti Sos. Pipera  nr. 46 A 24.231 999,135 999,135 

71 644184 MOBICOM                                            Satu Mare Liviu Rebreanu        43 24.110 40,983 40,983 

72 7323645 AGROMEC GATAIA                                     Gataia       1837  Sumigului 23.910 33,963 33,963 

73 2206261 RAMIRA                                             Baia Mare V. Lucaciu nr. 160  23.748 674,045 674,045 

74 1728194 
AGROINDUSTRIALA 

SAGU*                               
Sagu   23.620 343,843 343,843 

75 1071522 AGROTRANSPORT*                                      Resita P. Iorgovici   nr. 34 23.460 9,648 9,648 

76 1758098 CTCE                                               Alba Iulia M.Viteazu  nr.  4 23.236 21,253 21,253 

77 1856312 
AGROINDUSTRIALA 

SOCGAT*                             
Gataia Republicii 22.652 264,280 264,280 

78 14971046 UPSRUEEM                                           Craiova Mihai Viteazu nr 19A 21.991 219,165 219,165 

79 3094999 MOPAL*                                              Bistrita Tarpiului  nr. 14 21.894 20,197,562 20,197,562 

80 768506 MOLIDUL*                                           Vama Stefan cel Mare 21.633 226,448 226,448 

81 7355850 MECON TRANS                                        Bistrita Valea Castailor  nr. 1 21.614 24,035 24,035 

82 1754770 COMAT ALBA                                         Alba Iulia Garii nr. 10 20.666 132,115 132,115 

83 1060620 COMAT CARAS SEVERIN                                Resita Moniom nr. 113 20.406 62,210 62,210 

84 1765044 METALURGICA*                                     Aiud Vulcan nr.  2-10 20.007 1,787,623 1,787,623 

85 1678967 AVI  FLORIA  HOLDING*                               Arad Ioan Antonescu nr. 32 20.001 37,000 37,000 

 Total book value of companies in which SIF holds between 20%-50%.  49,864,571 
 
 

* Companies in insolvency procedures, dissolution or winding up.
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12.  STRUCTURE OF BANK DEPOSITS 

 

The structure of bank deposits as at 31 December 2010 is presented in the table below: 

Description Deposit amount 
Interest as at  

31 December 2010 

 

Weight in 

total in-

terest 

Date 

Bank Currency 
Maturity < 60 

days 

Maturity >60 

days 
% Amount Start Maturity 

         

ALPHA BANK RON 1,000,000  8.40 13,347.95 1.26 04/11/2010 03/01/2011 

ALPHA BANK RON 2,139,000  8.20 11,533.02 1.09 08/12/2010 09/01/2011 

ALPHA BANK RON 2,608,000  8.20 11,132.23 1.05 13/12/2010 12/01/2011 

ALPHA BANK RON             9,175,000 8.50 145,291.78 13.69 25/10/2010 23/01/2011 

ALPHA BANK RON 4,269,000  8.20 34,526.27 3.25 26/11/2010 25/01/2011 

Banca CR Firenze RON 700,000  8.50 7,172.60 0.68 18/11/2010 17/01/2011 

Banca CR Firenze RON 3,949,000  8.50 34,945.95 3.29 24/11/2010 23/01/2011 

Banca CR Firenze RON        2,600,000  8.50 22,402.74 2.11 25/11/2010 24/01/2011 

Banca Italo-Romena RON             1,900,000 8.80 36,188.49 3.41 14/10/2010 13/01/2011 

Banca Italo-Romena RON  1,781,000 8.70 14,008.91 1.32 29/11/2010 30/01/2011 

BCR RON             3,700,000 7.16 52,984.00 4.99 21/10/2010 20/01/2011 

BCR RON  1,800,000 7.25 4,350.00 0.41 20/12/2010 20/03/2011 

BRD RON                310,000 7.50 5,166.67 0.49 13/10/2010 10/01/2011 

Ing Bank RON           584,516  0.80 12.99 0.00 31/12/2010 02/01/2011 

Piraeus Bank RON 3,020,000  8.25 16,610.00 1.56 08/12/2010 09/01/2011 

Piraeus Bank RON 2,120,000  8.25 19,433.33 1.83 22/11/2010 20/01/2011 

TRANSILVANIA RON                200,000 8.00 12,977.78 1.22 15/03/2010 06/01/2011 

TRANSILVANIA RON  600,000 8.00 38,933.33 3.67 15/03/2010 23/01/2011 

TRANSILVANIA RON                200,000 8.00 12,977.78 1.22 15/03/2010 08/02/2011 

TRANSILVANIA RON  600,000 8.00 38,933.33 3.67 15/03/2010 23/02/2011 

TRANSILVANIA RON             2,400,000 8.25 169,950.00 16.01 26/02/2010 24/02/2011 

TRANSILVANIA RON  800,000 8.00 51,911.11 4.89 15/03/2010 08/03/2011 

TRANSILVANIA RON  2,750,000 8.00 174,166.67 16.41 22/03/2010 20/03/2011 
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Description  Deposit  amount 
Interest as at 31         

December 2010 
 Date 

Bank Currency 
Maturity < 60 

days 

Maturity >60 

days 
% Amount 

Weight in 

total in-

terest 

Start Maturity 

Alpha Bank (RON eq.) EUR  15,656,659 4.40 32,085.44 3.02 15/12/2010 14/03/2011 

Banca CR Firenze (RON eq) EUR      11,584,385  4.40 61,444.85 5.79 18/11/2010 17/01/2011 

Banca Italo-Romena ( RON eq.)  EUR  6,735,706 4.10 30,264.53 2.85 22/11/2010 21/02/2011 

BCR (RON eq.) EUR           137,114  2.20 217.84 0.02 06/12/2010 05/01/2011 

Transilvania (RON eq.) EUR        8,441,275  3.00 8,441.27 0.80 20/12/2010 09/01/2011 

 

TOTAL  43,152,289 48,608,365  1,061,410,86 100   
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The structure of bank deposits as at 31 December 2009 is presented in the table below: 

Description Deposit amount 
Interest as at  

31 December 2009 
 

Weight in 

total inter-

est 

Date 

Bank Currency 
Maturity < 60 

days 

Maturity >60 

days 
% Amount Start Maturity 

ALPHA BANK RON 500,000  11.70 4,487.67 0.23 04/12/2009 06/01/2010 

ALPHA BANK RON 3,370,000  11.70 24,845.67 1.29 09/12/2009 07/01/2010 

ALPHA BANK RON 5,000,000  11.70 48,082.19 2.50 02/12/2009 10/01/2010 

ALPHA BANK RON           5,000,000  11.70 48,082.19 2.50 02/12/2009 10/01/2010 

ALPHA BANK RON           4,315,000  11.70 41,494.93 2.16 02/12/2009 10/01/2010 

ALPHA BANK RON 5,000,000  11.70 48,082.19 2.50 02/12/2009 10/01/2010 

ALPHA BANK RON           5,000,000  11.70 48,082.19 2.50 02/12/2009 10/01/2010 

ALPHA BANK RON            5,352,000 11.50 136,585.97 7.10 12/10/2009 11/01/2010 

ALPHA BANK RON              510,000  11.60 4,538.30 0.24 04/12/2009 20/01/2010 

BCR RON            5,000,000 14.00 443,333.33 23.03 18/05/2009 10/01/2010 

BCR RON           2,775,000  10.00 29,921.67 1.52 24/11/2009 21/01/2010 

BCR RON  5,500,000 14.00 487,666.67 25.34 18/05/2009 04/03/2010 

Ing Bank RON              300,000  9.60 720.00 0.04 23/12/2009 06/01/2010 

TRANSILVANIA RON  200,000 13.50 15,225.00 0.79 12/06/2009 07/01/2010 

TRANSILVANIA RON           1,090,000  10.60 9,307.39 0.48 03/12/2009 10/01/2010 

TRANSILVANIA RON 3,900,000  10.60 32,153.33 1.67 04/12/2009 14/01/2010 

TRANSILVANIA RON           6,000,000  10.60 24,733.33 1.29 18/12/2009 17/01/2010 

TRANSILVANIA RON  600,000 13.50 45,675.00 2.37 12/06/2009 21/01/2010 

TRANSILVANIA RON 500.000  10.65 1,479.17 0.08 22/12/2009 21/02/2010 

TRANSILVANIA RON               200,000 13.50 15,225.00 0.79 12/06/2009 08/02/2010 

TRANSILVANIA RON 2,600,000  10.60 13,780.00 0.72 14/12/2009 14/02/2010 

TRANSILVANIA RON  600,000 13.50 45,675.00 2.37 12/06/2009 23/02/2010 

TRANSILVANIA RON               200,000 13.50 15,225.00 0.79 12/06/2009 08/03/2010 

TRANSILVANIA RON               600,000 13.50 45,675.00 2.37 12/06/2009 23/03/2010 

TRANSILVANIA RON  200,000 13.50 15.225,00 0.79 12/06/2009 08/04/2010 
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12.   

 

Description  

Deposit amount 

 

 

Interest as at  

31 December 2009 
 

Date 

Bank Currency 
Maturity < 60 

days 

Maturity >60 

days 
% Amount 

Weight in 

total inter-

est 

Start Maturity 

TRANSILVANIA RON  600,000 13.50 45,675.00 2.37 12/06/2009 22/04/2010 

TRANSILVANIA RON  200,000 13.50 15,225.00 0.79 12/06/2009 06/05/2010 

TRANSILVANIA RON  600,000 13.50 45,675.00 2.37 12/06/2009 20/05/2010 

TRANSILVANIA RON  800,000 13.50 60,900.00 3.16 12/06/2009 08/06/2010 

TRANSILVANIA RON  2,600,000 10.50 12,133.33 0.63 16/12/2009 14/06/2010 

TRANSILVANIA RON  600,000 10.10 6,396.67 0.33 24/11/2009 22/07/2010 

Alpha Bank (RON eq.) EUR 6,366,020  4.55 23,807.18 1.24 02/12/2009 10/01/2010 

Alpha Bank (RON eq.) EUR  21,267,846 4.75 24,909.59 1.29 23/12/2009 22/03/2010 

Transilvania (RON eq.) EUR 6,885,201  4.00 22,950.67 1.19 02/12/2009 10/01/2010 

Transilvania (RON eq.) EUR  20,386,139 4.40 22,424.77 1.17 23/12/2009 22/03/2010 

TOTAL  59,111,221 65,505.985  1,924,768.40 100  
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13. STRUCTURE OF GROSS INCOME 

  Year ended 31  

December 2009  

 

       Year ended 31  

December 2010 

     

     

1 Income from non-current financial assets
1
 90,414,635  51,891,144 

2 Income from current financial assets (interest 

from bonds - other placements 

 

- 

  

- 

3 Income from non-current receivables -  - 

4 Income on disposal of financial assets
2
 62,056,894  33,441,654 

5 Income from services provided - 

- 

 - 

- 

6 Foreign exchange gain 1,188,935  2,786,710 

7 Interest income 9,966,533  7,693,136 

8 Income from reactivated receivables and sundry 

debtors 

-  - 

9 Income from capitalized production -  - 

10 Income from provisions 15,795,863  17,041,212 

11 Other operating income 
3
: 

- Research and development 

- Royalties, locations and rent 

- Sundry activities 

- Subsidies 

- Other income 

- Discounts obtained 

- Other financial income 

 

- 

72,750 

- 

- 

882,228 

- 

154,250 

  

- 

118,435 

- 

- 

216,460 

- 

322,884 

12 Income from subsidies for extraordinary events 

and related items  

- 

- 

 - 

- 

     

13 TOTAL INCOME 180,532,088  113,511,635 

 
1
 Income from non-current financial assets include dividends income amounting to RON 13,083,819 (2009: RON 

72,803,701) and income from the share capital increase through incorporation of share   premium or reserves 

constituted of net profit, performed by the companies in the portfolio of SIF Banat-Crisana, amounting to RON 

38,807,325  (2009: RON 17,610,934). 

2
 Income from the disposal of financial assets includes income from non-current financial assets disposed of 

amounting to RON 33,395,138 (2009: RON 61,718,865) and gains from short term financial assets disposed of, 

amounting to RON 46,516 (2009:RON 338,029). 

3
 Income from provisions include income from reversal of allowances afferent to short term financial   assets and 

non-current financial assets, amounting to RON 12,799,212 (2009: RON 15,745,593) and   income from provisions 

amounting to RON 4,242,000 representing reversal of provision for incentives granted to employees for profit 

realization (2009: RON 50,270 representing the reversal of provisions    set-up for the audit of financial 

statements). 

 

 

 

 

 

 



SIF BANAT-CRIȘANA | NOTES TO THE INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31 DECEMBER 2010  

(all amounts are presented in RON, unless otherwise stated) 

 

   71 

14.  STRUCTURE OF EXPENSES 

 

 

Year ended  

 

Year ended 

31 December  

2009 

 31 December  

2010 

Losses on receivables from associates -  - 

Expenses with the disposal of financial assets 43,598,125  25,665,672 

Fees and commissions expense
4
 1,888,724  2,337,960 

Foreign exchange loss 1,204,071  2,008,433 

Interest expense -  - 

Expenses with bank services and similar charges 33,436  44,362 

Bad debt written off and various debtors 739,443  16,105 

Expenses with depreciation and provisions 
5
 5,246,974  3,131,817 

Expenditure on third parties 

      - maintenance and repairs 

- rent and royalties 

- insurance premiums 

- research and studies 

- advertising and protocol 

- transport of goods and people 

- travel, postings, transfers 

- postal and telecommunication 

- other third party services   

- other expenses 

- expenses with discounts granted 

- other financial expenses 

 

97,148 

91,036 

46,164 

- 

264,385 

711 

118,203 

206,034 

406,032 

219,552 

- 

253,847 

  

201,253 

96,444 

45,607 

- 

195,344 

1,210 

169,450 

182,351 

567,357 

340,652 

- 

269,400 

 Other duties, taxes and similar payments 139,789  173,212 

Other expenses: 

-consumables 

- inventory 

- materials, other than inventory 

- energy and water 

- expense with liberal professions 

- salaries 

- social security  

 

100,717 

 

29,578 

65,451 

126,485 

- 

5,600761 

1,617,551 

  

118,402 

 

57,338 

89,067 

177,944 

- 

10,337,777 

2,084,047 

Expenditure on disasters and extraordinary events -  - 

Income tax 6,252,121  2,205,115 

Tax expenses other not mentioned above   

- 

  

- 

TOTAL EXPENSES 68,346,428  50,515,319 

 
4
 Fees and commissions  expenses include amounts owed to the company providing registry services, the 

commission of 0.1% of the net assets due to CNVM, fees for the transactions performed owed to financial 

investment services companies, audit fees, fees for bailiffs and other expenses with fees and commissions. 

5
 Expenses  with depreciation and provisions include the expenses regarding the impairment of current assets 

amounting to RON 259,867 (2009: RON 561,239), provision charges amounting to RON 2,447,000 (2009: RON 

4,242,000) and depreciation expenses of tangible and intangible assets amounting to RON 424,950 (2009: RON 

443,735).  
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15.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

  31 December  31 December  

  2009  2010 

     

Petty cash and bank accounts 

 

Bank accounts  306,753  548,727 

Petty cash  11,098  4,791 

Cash prepayments and other values  13,585  7,592

    

Total petty cash and bank accounts  331,436  561,110

   

Bank deposits  124,617,206  91,760,654 

Less deposits with a residual maturity of more than 3 months  (5,600,000)  -

   

Total liquid bank deposits (Note 12)  119,017,206  91,760,654 

 

Bonds and securities                 3,396,706         14,914,128 

Less bonds and securities with a residual 

maturity of more than 3 months                 (3,396,706)      (14,901,038) 

 

Total liquid bonds and securities                               -                         13.090 

 

Total cash and cash equivalents                              119,348,642        92,334,854 

 

As at 31 December 2010 there are no restrictions on cash in bank accounts. 

 

 

16.  RESERVES 

 

As at 31 December 2010, the Company’s reserves amounting to RON 524,049,907 (2009: RON 436,517,065) and 

retained earnings in the amount of RON -103,384,386 (2009: RON -103,384,386) included: 

 2010 

Gross 

amounts  

Provisions  

for taxes  

Note 2(a)  Net amounts 

A Legal reserve 10,976,985    10,976,985 

B 

Reserves for allowances for impair-

ment of financial assets (108,844,049)    (108,844,049) 

C 

Reserves for the value of non-current 

financial assets received at no cost 151,257,939  (24,201,268)  127,056,671 

D Reevaluation surplus reserves 429,925    429,925 

E 

Other reserves created as a result of 

Law no. 133/1996 145,486,088  (23,277,774)  122,208,314 

F Other reserves - own funds 350,408,468    350,408,468 

G Other reserves – tax incentives 19,832,945  (3,173,271)  16,659,674 

H Revaluation reserve 6,135,617  (981,698)  5,153,919 

I Retained earnings (103,384,386)    (103,384,386) 

 Total 472,299,532  (51,634,011)  420,665,521 
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 2009 

Gross 

amounts  

Provisions  

for taxes - 

Note2(a)  Net amounts 

A Legal reserve 10,976,985    10,976,985 

B 

Reserves for allowances for impair-

ment of financial assets (112,544,556)    (112,544,556) 

C 

Reserves for the value of non-current 

financial assets received at no cost 152,360,978  (24,377,756)  127,983,222 

D Revaluation surplus reserves 331,872    331,872 

E 

Other reserves created as a result of 

Law no. 133/1996 145,486,088  (23,277,774)  122,208,314 

F Other reserves - own funds 265,665,271    265,665,271 

G Other reserves – tax incentives 19,832,945  (3,173,271)  16,659,674 

H Revaluation reserve 6,233,670  (997,387)  5,236,283 

I Retained earnings (103,384,386)    (103,384,386) 

 Total 384,958,867  (51,826,188)  333,132,679 

 

A. Legal reserve, amounting to RON 10,976,985 (2009: RON 10,976,985), are set up in accordance with Law 

31/1990, through the allocation of 5% of accounting profit (calculated in accordance with Romanian accounting 

standards) until the reserve fund reaches 20% of the share capital. In 2006 the reserve reached 20% of the 

Company’s share capital.  

B. Reserves for allowances for impairment of financial assets consist of adjustments for impairment of financial 

assets amounting to RON 108,844,049, resulting from the measurement of the portfolio at fair value as at 31 

December 2010 and from the recognition of impairment allowances as the difference between the higher book 

value and the fair value determined in accordance with the CNVM Regulation no. 15/2004 (2009: RON 

112,544,556). 

C. Reserves for the value of non-current financial assets received at no cost consist of the value of shares received 

at no cost amounting to RON 127,056,671 (2009: RON 127,983,222) that include the value of shares acquired as a 

result of the share capital increase by incorporation of elements of equity. The provision for income taxes for 

these reserves amounting to RON 24,201,268  (2009: RON 24,377,756) was deducted from the gross amount of 

these reserves amounting to RON 151,257,939 (2009: RON 152,360,978) and was calculated at a rate of 16%, in 

force since 1 January 2005. 

D. Reserves representing realized revaluation surplus, amounting to RON 429,925 (2009: RON 331,872) 

represents the revaluation reserve of tangible assets disposed of. 

E. Other reserves – resulted from the application of Law no. 133/1996, amounting to RON 122,208,314 (2009: 

RON 122,208,314). The provision for income taxes for these reserves amounting to RON 23,277,774 (2009: RON 

23,277,774) was deducted from the gross amount of these reserves amounting to RON 145,486,088 (2009: RON 

145,486,088) and was calculated at a rate of 16%, in force since 1 January 2005. 

F. Other reserves - own funds, amounting to RON 350,408,468, which were setup from the net profit based on 

the approval of the General Meeting of Shareholders (2009: RON 265,665,271). These reserves will be used in the 

future as decided by the ordinary general meeting of shareholders. 

G. Other reserves - tax incentives amounting to RON 16,659,674 (2009: RON 16,659,674). 

The provision for income taxes for these reserves amounting to RON 3,173,271 (2009: RON 3,173,271) was 

deducted from the gross amount of these reserves amounting to RON 19,832,945 (2008: RON 19,832,945) and 

was calculated at a rate of 16%, in force since 1 January 2005. 

H. Revaluation reserve amounting to RON 5,153,919 (2009: RON 5,236,283) includes net revaluation of buildings, 
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in accordance with regulations. Revaluation reserve represents the difference between the gross amount of RON 

6,135,617 (2009: RON 6,233,670) and the provision for deferred taxes afferent to the revaluation amounting to 

RON 981,698, calculated at a rate of 16% (2009: RON 997,387). 

I. Retained earnings amounting to RON -103,384,386 (2009: RON -103,384,386) represents favorable retained 

earnings from the first time adoption of IAS, except for IAS 29, amounting to RON 5,437,415 (2009: 5,437,415) 

and unfavorable results from the adoption of the rules of accounting in accordance with the Fourth Directive of 

the European Economic Community amounting to RON -108,821,801 (2009: RON 108,821,801). 

The Board of Directors proposes, under the provisions of Company Law no. 31/1990 and of the CNVM Order no. 

75/2005 regarding the approval of accounting regulations in compliance with the 4
th
 Directive of the European 

Economic Community applicable to entities authorised, regulated and supervised by the National Securities 

Commission, modified through the CNVM Order no. 11/2009, the coverage of the accumulated losses resulted 

from the transition to accounting regulations compliant with the 4
th
 Directive of the EEC amounting to RON 

108,821,801 from other reserves set-up for own sources of funding, appropriated from the net profit of previous 

years. 

 

17.  RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 

 

During 2010 and 2009, the Company had no significant business transactions with related parties and 

given the nature of the activities of SIF Banat-Crişana, no financing transactions with related parties exist, 

other than any contribution to their capital. 

 

 

18.  FINANCIAL RISKS 

 

Giving the nature of the Company’s activity, it is exposed to the following risks: 

a. Currency risk 

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign        

exchange rates. 

During 2010, the Company has conducted transactions in both the Romanian currency (RON) and in   

foreign currency. Romanian currency has fluctuated compared to foreign currencies, Euro and USD, at the 

end of the year registering an appreciation of its value and the financial results of 2010 have been  ex-

posed to positive influences due to exchange rate fluctuations. 

The financial instruments used enable the conservation of the value of monetary assets held in RON, by 

making placements and receiving interest depending on the term of maturity. 

The Company has not carried out any transactions with derivatives during the 2009 and 2010 financial 

years. 

b. Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market    

interest rates. 

 

Interest rate risk consists of the risk of fluctuation in the value of a particular financial instrument due to chang-

es in interest rates and the risk of differences in maturity between interest-bearing financial assets and interest-

bearing debt used to finance those assets. 

 

The period that the interest rate remains fixed for a financial instrument indicates, therefore, to what    

extent it is exposed to interest rate risk. Financial instruments bear interest at market rate, therefore it is 

considered fair values are not significantly different from book values. 
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Most financial assets of the Company are in stable currencies whose interest rates are unlikely to vary 

significantly.   

c. Price risk 

Price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changing market 

prices, irrespective whether those changes are caused by factors specific to individual instruments or their 

issuer, or the changes are caused by factors affecting all instruments traded on the market. 

 

In 2009 and 2010, as a result of the global financial crisis Romania was affected by price risk through in-

creased depreciation of the quotation of shares. 

 

Since the Company has a large portfolio of listed shares, it was adversely affected by price risk. 

d. Credit risk  

Credit risk is the risk that one of the parties to a financial instrument will fail to meet an obligation, which will 

cause the other party to record a financial loss. 

 

Financial assets which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk include mainly 

receivables from the core activity. They are presented net of adjustments for doubtful debts. The       

Company’s management closely and constantly monitors the exposure to credit risk in order to reduce 

losses due to credit concentration in a particular sector or area of activity. 

e. Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk, also called financing risk, is the risk that an enterprise has difficulties in accumulating funds 

to meet commitments associated with financial instruments.   

The Company pursues the evolution of liquidity in order to be able to pay obligations on the date they 

are due. Assets and liabilities are analyzed according to the time remaining until contractual maturity in 

Note 5 "Statements of receivables and payables”. 

f. Cash flow risk 

Cash flow risk is the risk that future cash flows associated with a monetary financial instrument will   fluc-

tuate in size. In case of a financial instrument with a floating rate, for example, such fluctuations will result 

in a change of the effective interest rate of the financial instrument, usually without any changes in its fair 

value.  

By the nature of its activity, the Company is not subject to a serious risk of changing the projected cash 

flow, both from financial instruments fluctuation and the interest rate changes 

g. Taxation risk 

Since January 1, 2007, following Romania's accession to the European Union, the Company must comply 

with EU regulations, and therefore has prepared to implement EU law. The company has implemented 

these changes, but the method of implementation remains open to fiscal controls for 5 years. 

 

Interpretation of texts and the practical implementation of new tax regulations may vary and it is likely, in 

some cases, that the tax authorities could adopt a position different from that of the Company 

In addition, the Romanian Government has a number of agencies authorized to audit (control) companies 

operating in Romania. These controls are similar to tax audits in other countries, and may cover not only 

fiscal issues, but other legal and regulatory issues of interest to these agencies. The Company may be 

subject to fiscal controls as new tax regulations are issued. 

h. Economic environment risk 

The process of risk repricing that occurred in the international financial markets in recent years has se-

verely affected their performance, including financial market in Romania, leading to an increased uncer-

tainty about future economic developments going forward.    
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The ongoing financial crisis determined, among other things, the following effects on the Romanian finan-

cial market: 

a. Lower level of the capital market; 

b. Higher lending rates; 

c. Worsening in the population’s behavior of loans repayment; 

d. Increase of the RON interest rate, due to the global liquidity crisis; 

e. The depreciation of the national currency 

f. Decrease in real estate assets’ market prices; 

g. Negative trend in the macro economical indicators (inflation, budget deficit, current account deficit, 

decrease of foreign direct financial assets, increase of the unemployment rate etc.) 

Management is unable to foresee all effects of the crisis, which will have an impact on the financial envi-

ronment, and neither its potential impact on these individual financial statements.  

Management believes it is taking all the necessary measures to support the sustainability and growth of 

the Company’s business in the current circumstances, having adopted the following measures:  

- Monitoring of cash flows 

- Adequacy of investment policy 

 

19.  CONCENTRATION OF EXPOSURE 

a. Bank deposits 

As at 31 December 2010 Company’s exposure to banks was as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bank 

 

Weight in total 

deposits 

Amounts as at 

31 December 

2010 

Weight in 

total deposits 

Amounts as at 

31 December 

2009 

Alpha Bank 38.0% 34,847,659 49.5% 61,680,566 

Banca CR Firenze Romania 20.5% 18,833,385 - - 

Banca Transilvania 17.4% 15,991,274 39.6% 49,361,340 

Banca Italo-Romena 11.4% 10,416,706 - - 

Banca Comerciala Romana 6.15% 5,637,114 10.7% 13,275,000 

Piraeus Bank Romania 5.6% 5,140,000 - - 

ING Bank NV Amsterdam –

Bucharest branch 
0.75 584,516 0.2% 300,000 

BRD-GSG 0.3% 310,000 - - 

Total 100% 91,760,654 100% 124,617,206 
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b. Non-current financial assets 

As at 31 December 2010, the Company’s exposure to financial companies in which it had participations of more 

than 1.4% of total portfolio, according to the book value was as follows: 

   

 
 

Company 

 

Share of total 

non-current 

financial assets 

Participation 

amount as at 31 

December 2010 

Share of total 

non-current 

financial assets 

Participation amount 

as at 31 December 

2009 

Banca Transilvania 11.90% 84,404,093 10.53% 71,037,768 

Banca Comercială Română 8.71% 61,812,563 7.05% 47,548,125 

Vrancart SA Adjud 8.42% 59,742,235                 7.75% 47.548.125 52,263,577 

Banca Română pentru Dezvoltare 6.05% 42,890,224 5.50% 37,093,690 

Biofarm SA Bucuresti 5.59% 39,642,895 5.51% 37,174,213 

Calipso SA Oradea   5,50%  37.093.690  5,29%  37.093.690 5.52% 39,142,739 5.80% 39,142,739 

Mechel Câmpia Turzii 3.76% 26,694,118 3.96% 26,694,118 

Napomar SA Cluj 3.65% 25,864,965 3.17% 21,378,535 

Mopal SA Bistrița Năsăud 2.85% 20,197,562 2.99% 20,197,562 

Central SA Petroşani 2.11% 14,984,375 2.22% 14,984,375 

Arcelor Mittal Steel Hunedoara  2.09% 14,803,188 2.19% 14,803,188 

IAMU Blaj 1.93% 13,687,863 1.77% 11,923,376 

Ario Bistrița 1.84% 13,034,523 1.93% 13,034,523 

OMV Petrom SA 1.74% 12,311,946 1.83% 12,311,946 

Gaz Vest SA Arad 1.48% 10,506,800 1.56% 10,506,800 

Turbomecanica SA București 1.44% 10,226,242 1.52% 10,226,242 

Total 69.08% 489,946,331 65.28% 440,320,777 

 

20.  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

 

Litigations 

As at 31 December 2010, the Company was involved in 157 litigations in Court trial. The Company is the claimant 

in 96 litigation cases, the defendant in 51 cases, and in five of the litigation cases, the Company is the intervening 

party. 

The litigations where the Company is the claimant or the intervening party, have as object the annulment of 

certain decisions of the General Shareholders’ Meetings of companies in which SIF Banat-Crişana acts as a 

shareholder and the recovery of overdue dividends or bankruptcy procedures of companies where SIF Banat-

Crişana is a shareholder.  

 There were challenged in court the general shareholders’ meetings’ decisions which were taken in 

violation of law or statutory regulations for convening and holding general meetings or violating the 

rights of the Company; 

 The Company’s management believes that the outcome of such litigations will not generate a loss and 

therefore, no provision has been accounted for such disputes; 

 For the companies in insolvency procedures, the Company has filed a statement of receivables where 

there have been dividends not cashed; 

 The Company contested AVAS recognition of the absolute invalidity of acts of transfer of shares 

originally held at SC CELROM SA Drobeta Turnu Severin. The Company’s court action was admitted to 

the first instance and the appeal made by AVAS was rejected. The litigation reached the phase of forced 

execution. 

 The management believes that the outcome of this dispute could be adverse to the Company and 

therefore, a provision was set up  for the amount of shares originally held in SC CELROM SA. 



SIF BANAT-CRIȘANA | NOTES TO THE INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31 DECEMBER 2010  

(all amounts are presented in RON, unless otherwise stated) 

 

   78 

Concerning the litigations where the Company is the defendant, and where the request consisted in the 

annulment of certain decisions of the Board of Directors or/and General Shareholders’ Meetings, all diligences 

were initiated in order to close the judicial transactions and to amiably settle the litigation claims of both parties. 

The initiation of the litigations and the solutions offered were reported to CNVM and BVB.  

21.    INFORMATION REGARDING THE IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCES AS A RESULT OF THE APPLICATION 

OF CNVM ORDER NO. 11/2009 

As a result of the application of the Order no. 11/2009 of CNVM amending the Order no. 75/2005, the Company 

recognized directly in equity to " Reserves from allowances of impairment of financial assets " the adjustments for 

impairment of financial assets starting with 2008. 

The movement for the adjustments for impairment related to financial assets for 2010 is given below: 

 

Initial balance as at  01 January 2010                                                                   -112,544,556 

Increases during 2010 financial year                                                                                   -13,393,431 

Decreases during 2010 financial year                                                                                 -17,093,938 

Balance as at 31 December 2010                                                                      -108,844,049 

 

Increases recognized during 2010 include adjustments for impairment as at 31 December 2010 as the difference 

between the higher book value and the fair value determined according to CNVM Regulation no. 15/2004. 

The decrease adjustments for impairment include adjustments related to non-current financial assets disposed 

from SIF Banat-Crișana portfolio during 2010 and reversals related to non-current financial assets for which the 

fair value had increased as at 31 December 2010 and previously suffered depreciation. 

The adjustments for impairment of financial assets for 2010 amounting to RON 108,844,049 are reflected in the 

position  no. 69 of the balance sheet "Reserves allowances for impairment of financial assets”. 

If the adjustments for impairment recognized in the reserve account had influenced the profit and loss account, 

the results for the fiscal year 2010 would have been reduced by the amount of RON 3,700,507. 

 

 

     

Ioan Cuzman   Ștefan Doba 

Chairman & CEO     Economic Director 



List of terms
AGM Public company
Annual General Meeting A joint stock company set up by public 

subscription or a company that has issued 
BET (Bucharest Exchange Trading) securities through an initial public offering 
is the reference index of BSE market. It is a free (IPO)
float weighted capitalization index of the most 
liquid ten companies listed on the regulated Record date
market. is the date set by the AGM to identify the 

shareholders eligible to receive dividends or 
BET-C (Bucharest Exchange Trading – other rights and who will be affected by the 
composite index) resolutions of the AGM. The record date is 
is the composite index of BSE market. It is a subsequent to the AGM
market capitalization weighted index. BET-C 
reflects the price movements of all the Reference date
companies on the BSE regulated market, 1st is the date set by the Board of Directors to 
and 2nd Tiers, excepting SIFs. identify the shareholders who are entitled to 

attend and vote at the AGM. The reference 
BET-FI (Bucharest Exchange Trading date is announced in the Notice of AGM
–Investment Funds)
reflects the price movements of the investment Registrar
funds (SIFs) and Fondul Proprietatea traded on is a joint stock company, authorized by CNVM, 
the BSE regulated market. BET-FI is a free float which ensures clearing and settlement of the 
weighted capitalization index. transactions concluded on BSE market and is 

responsible for keeping records of the issuer's 
BoD registries.
Board of Directors

ROA
Closed-end company return on assets
A company that does not meet the conditions 
to qualify as public company ROE

return on equity
Issuer
Legal entity that is authorized to issue its own RON
securities Romanian new leu, the currency of Romania

CNVM ROTX (Romanian Traded Index)
Comisia Națională a Valorilor Mobiliare is a free float weighted capitalization index and 

reflects in real time the movements of “blue 
NBR chip” companies traded on the BSE market. It is 
National Bank of Romania calculated in RON, EUR and USD and 

disseminated in real-time by the Wiener Borse
BSE
Bucharest Stock Exchange

CNVM
Romanian National Securities Commission

Depository
is a bank, authorized by CNVM, which holds 
funds or securities deposited by other entities 
under a specific agreement

IPO
initial public offer

NAV
net asset value
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• drawing up, presenting and publishing • developing the information infrastructure 
several scientific papers at different and maintaining the quality and security 
scientific events, conferences, symposiums, standards of the IT support at a high level, 
magazines, scientific sessions. i.e. developing and integrating applications 

correlated with the development of 
company's activities, keeping the security of 
the information system and of VPN system Organizational development
with the branch offices at a high level, 
obtaining a SMSI certification in 

• ensuring the ongoing development of compliance with the requirements of 
employees' competencies and standard SR EN ISO 27001:2005. 
proficiencies, facilitating participation in 
external and in-house training courses 
within a well structured program; 
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Bistrița office

Str. General Grigore Bălan nr. 23, Bistrița 420094
jud. Bistrița-Năsăud, Romania
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Piața Muzeului nr. 1, Cluj-Napoca 400019
jud. Cluj, Romania 
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